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Item 2.02 Results of Operations and Financial Condition.

On May 2, 2005, National Health Investors, Inc. issued a press release announcing its 2005 first quarter results. A
copy of the press release is filed an Exhibit 99 to this Current Report on Form 8-K and is incorporated by reference
herein.

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to
be signed on its behalf by the undersigned hereunto duly authorized.

National Health Investors, Inc.
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99 Press release, dated May 2, 2005

EXHIBIT 99

For Release: May 2, 2005

Contact: Gerald Coggin, Senior VP of Corporate Relations

Phone: (615) 890-9100

NHI reports first quarter income
MURFREESBORO, Tenn. -- National Health Investors, Inc., (NYSE: NHI) announced income from
continuing operations for the first quarter ended March 31, 2005 of $16,127,000 or 58 cents per basic and
diluted share of common stock compared to $13,618,000 or 49 cents per basic and diluted share of
common stock for the same period in 2004.

Funds from operations, ("FFO") from continuing operations for the first quarter ended March 31, 2005 was
$18,902,000 or 69 cents per basic and $18,930,000, or 68 cents per diluted share of common stock
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compared to $16,406,000 or 61 cents per basic and $16,438,000 or 59 cents per diluted share of common
stock in 2004.

Income and FFO from continuing operations for the first quarter of 2005 includes $4,522,000 or 16 cents
per basic and diluted share of common stock related to non-recurring income. This non-recurring income is
attributable to security sale recoveries and gains of $9,072,000, less impairment writedowns of $4,550,000
on realty and mortgage notes receivable.

Income and FFO from continuing operations for the first quarter of 2004 included $2,657,000 or 10 cents
per basic and diluted share of common stock related to non-recurring income attributable to security sale
recoveries and gains and loan recoveries.

Accomplishments during the first quarter included: the investment of approximately $27,500,000 in
mortgages receivable and real property; the repayment of approximately $34,500,000 of debt; improved
liquidity as a result of cash and marketable securities of $142,685,000 exceeding total debt outstanding of
$121,010,000 and; a debt to capitalization ratio of 22.3%, the lowest in our 13 year history.

NHI specializes in the financing of health care real estate by first mortgage and by purchase and leaseback
transactions. The common stock of the company trades on the New York Stock Exchange with the symbol
NHI. Additional information including NHI's most recent press releases may be obtained on our web site at
www.nhinvestors.com.

Statements in this press release that are not historical facts are forward-looking statements. NHI cautions investors that any
forward-looking statements made involve risks and uncertainties and are not guarantees of future performance. All forward-looking
statements represent NHI's judgment as of the date of this release.

-More-

Page 2 NHI's first quarter income

Condensed Statements of Income
(in thousands, except share and per share amounts)

Three Months Ended March 31
Revenues: 2005 2004
Mortgage interest income $ 3,907 $ 4,851
Rental income 11,538 12,120
Facility operating revenue 22,629 20,400

38,074 37,371
Expenses:
Interest 2,470 3,120
Depreciation 3,149 3,441
Amortization of loan costs 72 37
Legal expense 147 149
Franchise and excise tax 67 70
General and administrative 1,103 856
Loan, realty and security losses (recoveries), (472) (1,989)
Facility operating expense 21,365 20,202
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27,901 25,886
Income Before Non-Operating Income 10,173 11,485
Non-operating income (investment interest & other) 5,954 2,133
Income From Continuing Operations 16,127 13,618
Discontinued Operations:
Operating Loss - discontinued (81) (183)
Gain on sale of real estate 748 ---

667 (183)
Net Income 16,794 13,435
Dividends to preferred stockholders --- 397
Net income applicable to common stock $ 16,794 $ 13,038

Income from continuing operations per common share:
Basic $ .58 $ .49
Diluted $ .58 $ .49
Discontinued operations per common share:
Basic $ .03 $ ---
Diluted $ .03 $ (.01)
Net income per common share:
Basic $ .61 $ .49
Diluted $ .61 $ .48
Funds from operations
Basic $ 18,902 $ 16,406
Diluted $ 18,930 $ 16,438
Funds from operations per common share
Basic $ .69 $ .61
Diluted $ .68 $ .59
Weighted average common shares outstanding
Basic 27,580,665 26,782,468
Diluted 27,774,954 27,071,585
Diluted Shares for FFO purposes 27,774,954 27,748,503

Dividends per common share $ .45 $ .425

Balance Sheet Data

(in thousands)
March 31

December

2005 2004
Real estate properties, net $ 267,454 $ 278,170
Mortgages receivable, net 130,732 112,072
Preferred stock investment 38,132 38,132
Cash and marketable securities 142,685 190,313
Debt 119,962 154,432
Convertible debt 1,048 1,116
Stockholders' equity 420,441 425,539
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-More-

Page 3 NHI's first quarter income

Reconciliation of Funds From Operations (1)(2)

The following table reconciles net income to funds from operations:

Three Months Ended March 31
2005 2004

(in thousands, except share and per share amounts)

Net income $ 16,794 $ 13,435
Dividends to preferred stockholders --- (397)

Net income applicable to common stockholders 16,794 13,038
Elimination of non-cash items in net income:
Real estate depreciation 2,834 2,893
Real estate depreciation in discontinued operations 22 78
Gain on sale of real estate (748) ---
Dividends to preferred stockholders, if dilutive --- 397
Basic funds from operations applicable to common stockholders 18,902 16,406

Interest on convertible subordinated debentures 28 32

Diluted funds from operations applicable to common stockholders $ 18,930 $ 16,438

Basic funds from operations per share $ .69 $ .61
Diluted funds from operations per share $ .68 $ .59

Shares for basic funds from operations per share 27,580,665 26,782,468
Shares for diluted funds from operations per share 27,774,954 27,748,503

(1) We believe that funds from operations is an important supplemental measure of operating performance for a real estate
investment trust. Because the historical cost accounting convention used for real estate assets requires straight-line depreciation
(except on land), such accounting presentation implies that the value of real estate assets diminishes predictably over time. Since
real estate values instead have historically risen and fallen with market conditions, presentations of operating results for a real
estate investment trust that uses historical cost accounting for depreciation could be less informative, and should be supplemented
with a measure such as FFO. The term FFO was designed by the real estate investment trust industry to address this issue. Our
measure may not be comparable to similarly titled measures used by other REITs. Consequently, our funds from operations may
not provide a meaningful measure of our performance as compared to that of other REITs. Since other REITs may not use our
definition of FFO, caution should be exercised when comparing our Company's FFO to that of other REITs. Funds from operations
in and of itself does not represent cash generated from operating activities in accordance with GAAP (funds from operations does
not include changes in operating assets and liabilities) and therefore should not be considered an alternative to net earnings as an
indication of operating performance, or to net cash flow from operating activities as determined by GAAP in the United States, as a
measure of liquidity and is not necessarily indicative of cash available to fund cash needs.

(2) We have complied with the SEC's interpretation that recurring impairments taken on real property may not be added back to net
income in the calculation of FFO. The SEC's position is that recurring impairments on real property are not an appropriate
adjustment.

-More-
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Page 4 NHI's first quarter income

National Health Investors, Inc. Portfolio Summary March 31, 2005

Portfolio Statistics Investment
Properties Investment Percentage

Equity Ownership 94 270,004,000 64%
Mortgage Loan Receivables 65 132,732,000 36%
Total Real Estate Portfolio 159 402,736,000 100%

Equity Ownership Properties Beds Investments
Nursing Home 70 9,366 $ 181,848,000

Assisted Living 14 1,185 59,267,000

Medical Office Buildings 4 124,427 sq.ft. 10,750,000

Retirement Homes 5 426 10,615,000

Hospitals 1 55 7,524,000

94 $ 270,004,000

Mortgage Loan Receivables Properties Beds Investments
Nursing Homes 46 5,005 $ 120,786,000

Assisted Living 1 95 5,500,000

Retirement Homes 1 60 2,041,000

Developmentally Disabled 17 108 4,405,000

65 $ 132,732,000

Remic II Investment 459
Total Mortgage Portfolio 65 $ 132,732,000

Summary of Facilities by Type:
Percentage of Total

Properties Total Dollars Dollars
Nursing Homes 116 75.14% $ 302,634,000

Assisted Living 15 16.08% 64,767,000

Medical Office Buildings 4 2.67% 10,750,000

Retirement Homes 6 3.14% 12,656,000

Hospitals 1 1.87% 7,524,000

Developmentally Disabled 17 1.09% 4,405,000

159 100.00% $ 402,736,000

Page 5 NHI's first quarter income

Portfolio by Operator Type

# of Percentage of Total

Properties Total Dollars Dollars
Public 72 24.76% $ 99,733,000

Regional 80 70.64% 284,496,000

Small Operator 7 4.60% 18,507,000
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159 100.00% $ 402,736,000

Public Operators Percentage
Of Total Dollar
Portfolio Amount

National HealthCare Corp. 13.50% $ 54,375,000

Community Health Systems, Inc. 3.45% 13,909,000

Sunrise Senior Living Services 3.38% 13,605,000

Sun Healthcare 2.25% 9,073,000

Res-Care, Inc. 1.09% 4,405,000

HCA-The Healthcare Company 1.08% 4,366,000

24.76% $ 99,733,000

- More -

Page 6 NHI's first quarter income

Summary of Facilities by State March 31, 2005

Percent of
Acute Dev. Asst. Retire- Current Total

LTC Care MOB Disab. Living Ment Total Amount Portfolio
1 Florida 17 1 14 6 38 101,222,000 25.42%

2 Texas 27 2 1 30 86,976,000 21.84%

3 Tennessee 21 3 3 2 29 36,813,000 9.25%

4 Missouri 9 1 10 26,534,000 6.66%

5 New Jersey 2 1 3 25,871,000 6.50%

6 Virginia 8 8 20,312,000 5.10%

7 Arizona 1 4 5 18,888,000 4.74%

8 New Hampshire 3 1 4 15,376,000 3.86%

9 Georgia 7 7 14,973,000 3.76%

10 Massachusetts 4 4 11,315,000 2.84%

11 Kansas 7 7 11,226,000 2.82%

12 Kentucky 3 1 4 9,186,000 2.31%

13 South Carolina 3 1 4 8,078,000 2.03%

14 Idaho 1 1 2 5,492,000 1.38%

15 Alabama 2 2 2,285,000 0.57%

16 Wisconsin 1 1 2,071,000 0.52%

17 Illinois 0 1 1 1,568,000 0.39%

116 1 4 17 15 6 159 398,186,000 100.00%
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patents. In its response to these actions, the Company denied the allegations and had separately sought judgment that
the claims under the patents are invalid or unenforceable and that the Company does not infringe upon the patents.
The January 1995 and June 1996 actions were consolidated. The Court granted the Company�s various motions for
summary judgment and held that the Company does not infringe any of ResMed�s four patents at issue.

On September 4, 2003, the Company and ResMed reached a settlement on all of the aforementioned litigation. The settlement is not material to
the Company�s results of operations, financial condition, or cash flows.

Other

The Company is, as a normal part of its business operations, a party to other legal proceedings in addition to those described above. Legal
counsel has been retained for each proceeding and none of these proceedings is expected to have a material adverse impact on the Company�s
results of operations or financial condition.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

During the fourth quarter of the fiscal year 2003, no matters were submitted to a vote of security holders.

15
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PART II

Item 5. Market for Registrant�s Common Equity and Related Shareholder Matters

As of June 30, 2003, 37,505,700 shares of the Company�s common stock were issued, of which 3,548,479 are held in treasury. The common
stock is traded in the over-the-counter market and is reported on the NASDAQ National Market system under the symbol �RESP.� As of
September 22, 2003, there were 2,900 holders of record of the Company�s common stock.

The Company has never paid a cash dividend with respect to its common stock and does not intend to pay cash dividends in the foreseeable
future.

High and low sales price information for the Company�s common stock for the applicable quarters is shown below.

Fiscal year ended June 30, 2003:

First Second Third Fourth

High $ 35.21 $ 34.07 $ 34.72 $ 40.00
Low $ 26.50 $ 28.76 $ 28.73 $ 34.31

Fiscal year ended June 30, 2002:

First Second Third Fourth

High $ 37.00 $ 37.05 $ 37.88 $ 36.36
Low $ 27.75 $ 30.54 $ 23.79 $ 30.81

In the following table, we summarize information about the Company�s equity compensation plans as of June 30, 2003.

Number of securities to
be issued upon exercise
of outstanding options

and warrants

Weighted-average
exercise price

of
outstanding
options

and warrants

Number of securities
remaining available for
future issuance under

equity compensation plans

Equity compensation plans approved
by security holders 2,596,000 $ 24.13 830,000
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Equity compensation plans not
approved by security holders (a) 173,000 $ 25.79 �  

Total 2,769,000 $ 24.23 830,000

(a) - Represents stock options and warrants issued by companies that were acquired by Respironics, prior to the date of acquisition.

16
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

(Dollars in thousands except per share data)
Income Statement Data:

Year Ended June 30

2003 2002 2001 2000 1999

Net sales $ 629,817 $ 494,919 $ 422,438 $ 368,184 $ 357,571
Cost of goods sold 310,385 260,795 224,087 205,230 186,487

319,432 234,124 198,351 162,954 171,084

General and administrative expenses 85,767 60,719 50,126 48,754 48,521
Sales, marketing and commission expenses 116,300 86,189 72,428 62,772 60,899
Research and development expenses 24,047 17,317 15,281 16,815 16,714
Restructuring and acquisition-related expenses (credits) 17,789 2,288 (1,909) 20,486 2,415
Impairment charge 0 2,006 0 0 0
Interest and other expenses 639 1,569 6,517 5,551 4,079

Income before income taxes 74,890 64,036 55,908 8,576 38,456
Income taxes 28,309 25,619 22,337 2,824 15,395

Net income $ 46,581 $ 38,417 $ 33,571 $ 5,752 $ 23,061

Diluted earnings per share $ 1.36 $ 1.20 $ 1.09 $ 0.19 $ 0.72

Diluted shares outstanding 34,344 32,008 30,886 30,004 31,956

Balance Sheet Data:

June 30

2003 2002 2001 2000 1999

Working capital $ 212,787 $ 198,966 $ 171,985 $ 155,095 $ 155,336
Total assets 582,196 550,911 367,295 352,577 343,585
Total long-term obligations 16,513 59,502 80,055 108,095 99,374
Shareholders� equity 426,869 367,720 235,268 191,106 194,521

There were no cash dividends declared during any of the periods presented in the above table.

17
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Item 7. Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operations and Financial Condition

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2003, Compared to Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2002:

Net sales - Net sales for the year ended June 30, 2003 were $629,817,000 representing a 27% increase over sales of $494,919,000 recorded for
the year ended June 30, 2002. The Company�s sales growth occurred across all product groups, summarized as follows.

Year Ended

June 30 Dollar

Increase

Percent

Increase2003 2002

Domestic Homecare Products $ 388,516,000 $ 339,339,000 $ 49,177,000 14%
Domestic Hospital Products 79,427,000 57,468,000 21,959,000 38%
International Products 161,874,000 98,112,000 63,762,000 65%

Total $ 629,817,000 $ 494,919,000 $ 134,898,000 27%

Domestic homecare sales for the year ended June 30, 2003 were driven primarily by growth in sales of sleep apnea therapy devices, masks, and
accessories (the Company�s largest product line), and sales of developmental infant care products acquired from Novametrix Medical Systems
Inc. (now known as �Respironics Novametrix, LLC� and referred to herein as �Novametrix�), partially offset by decreases in sales of the Company�s
home oxygen products. Sales of hospital products for the year ended June 30, 2003 were driven primarily by growth in sales of hospital
ventilators and accessories and sales of cardio-respiratory monitoring devices acquired from Novametrix. The Company�s growth internationally
included sales from both homecare and hospital products, with the most significant increases coming from homecare sleep apnea therapy
devices, incremental revenues resulting from the Novametrix and Fuji RC Kabushiki Kaisha (�Fuji�) acquisitions, and demand for ventilation
products associated with the treatment of SARS (Severe Acute Respiratory Syndrome) during the fourth quarter of 2003.

In total, sales for the year ended June 30, 2003 included approximately $35,400,000 of incremental net sales from the products of Novametrix, a
leading cardio-respiratory monitoring company that was acquired by the Company during the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2002. Sales for the
year ended June 30, 2003 also included approximately $28,500,000 of incremental sales for Fuji, a provider of respiratory products and services
in which the Company obtained a majority interest in the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2002. The Company�s results of operations include the
results of both companies since the acquisition dates. For additional information regarding Novametrix and Fuji, see Note P to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Excluding the acquired revenues, sales for the year ended June 30, 2003 represented a 14% increase over sales recorded for the year ended June
30, 2002.
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Gross Profit - The Company�s gross profit was 51% for the year ended June 30, 2003 compared to 47% of net sales for the year ended June 30,
2002. The increase in gross profit percentage was primarily due to higher revenue, product sales mix, cost reductions, and the impact of higher
gross margins from acquired entities.

18

Edgar Filing: NATIONAL HEALTH INVESTORS INC - Form 8-K

Table of Contents 13



Table of Contents

General and Administrative Expenses - General and administrative expenses were $85,767,000 (14% of net sales) for the year ended June 30,
2003 as compared to $60,719,000 (12% of net sales) for the year ended June 30, 2002. The increase for the year ended June 30, 2003 was due
primarily to general and administrative expenses for the Company�s two acquired companies, Novametrix and Fuji. The remaining increases in
general and administrative expenses resulted from higher spending in a variety of areas, including employee compensation and information
systems, consistent with the growth of the Company�s business, and increases in business insurance and product warranty costs. General and
administrative expenses for the year ended June 30, 2002 included goodwill amortization expense in the amount of $3,507,000. As of July 1,
2002 the Company ceased amortizing goodwill due to the adoption of Financial Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 142, �Goodwill and
Other Intangible Assets.� For additional information, see Note A to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Sales, Marketing and Commission Expenses - Sales, marketing and commission expenses were $116,300,000 (18% of net sales) for the year
ended June 30, 2003 as compared to $86,189,000 (17% of net sales) for the year ended June 30, 2002. The majority of the increase was due to
sales and marketing expenses for the Company�s two acquired companies, Novametrix and Fuji, and increases in sales levels from the year ago
periods. The remainder of the increase was due to increased investments in the Company�s core sales and marketing programs.

Research and Development Expenses - Research and development expenses were $24,047,000 (4% of net sales) for the year ended June 30,
2003 as compared to $17,317,000 (3% of net sales) for the year ended June 30, 2002. A significant amount of the increase in absolute dollars
was due to research and development expenses incurred at Novametrix. The remaining increases were due to the Company�s continuing
commitment to research, development and new product introductions. In the 2003 fiscal year several new products were introduced, such as the
REMstar Pro with C-Flex, REMstar Plus True Compliance, and REMstar Lite CPAP devices, the Synchrony Avaps bi-level obstructive sleep
apnea therapy unit, new masks including the ComfortFull and Image 3 Deluxe, product software enhancements including the Encore Pro
communication link, Sleep Link with modem, and enhancements to the Esprit ventilation system, and the Stardust II diagnostic unit. Significant
product development efforts are ongoing and new product launches in many of the Company�s major product lines are scheduled for the next six
to eighteen months. Additional development work and clinical trials are being conducted in certain product areas and markets outside the
Company�s current core products and patient groups.

Restructuring and Acquisition-Related Expenses - During the year ended June 30, 2003, the Company incurred restructuring and
acquisition-related expenses of $18,144,000, related to the previously disclosed integration of Novametrix and restructuring of operations at the
Kennesaw, Georgia and Wallingford, Connecticut manufacturing facilities, and other acquisition-related costs. Of this amount, $17,789,000 is
included in restructuring and acquisition-related expenses, and $355,000 is included in cost of goods sold in the Consolidated Statement of
Operations for the year ended June 30, 2003. See Notes O and P to the Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information regarding
restructuring and acquisition-related expenses.

As part of the acquisition of Novametrix, during the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2002, the Company incurred a non-recurring purchase
accounting adjustment in cost of goods sold of $1,653,000 related to reversing acquisition date inventory fair market value adjustments as
inventory was sold subsequent to the acquisition. Also during the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2002, the Company incurred restructuring and
acquisition-related expenses of $2,288,000 related to the Novametrix acquisition, primarily for the elimination and centralization of certain
duplicate back-office functions. During the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2002, the Company also incurred an impairment charge of $2,006,000
representing the write-off of intangible assets, inventory, and fixed assets related to an oxygen monitoring technology development project that
was cancelled based in part on the results of a review of that technology by engineers at Novametrix.

Interest and Other Expenses � Interest and other expenses were $640,000 for the year ended June 30, 2003 as compared to $1,568,000 for the
year ended June 30, 2002. The decrease was due to reductions in the amount of outstanding borrowings and interest rates under the Company�s
Revolving Credit Agreement.
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Income Taxes - The Company�s effective income tax rate was approximately 38% for the year ended June 30, 2003 as compared to 40% for the
year ended June 30, 2002. This reduction was due primarily to the impact of eliminating non-deductible goodwill amortization effective July 1,
2002, and the income tax benefits associated with various ongoing tax planning strategies.

The Company has not provided a valuation allowance for deferred income tax assets because it has determined that it is more likely than not that
such assets can be realized, at a minimum, through carrybacks to prior years in which taxable income was generated.

Net Income - As a result of the factors described above, the Company�s net income was $46,581,000 (7% of net sales) or $1.36 per diluted share
for the year ended June 30, 2003 as compared to net income of $38,417,000 (8% of net sales) or $1.20 per diluted share for the year ended June
30, 2002. The restructuring and acquisition-related expenses described above constituted a reduction of $0.32 and $0.12 per diluted share on an
after-tax basis, respectively, for the years ended June 30, 2003 and 2002.

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2002, Compared to Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2001:

Net Sales - Net sales for fiscal year 2002 were $494,919,000, representing a 17% increase in sales over the $422,438,000 recorded in fiscal year
2001.

The Company�s sales growth occurred across all product groups, summarized as follows.

Year Ended

June 30 Dollar

Increase

Percent

Increase2002 2001

Domestic Homecare Products $ 339,339,000 $ 292,164,000 $ 47,175,000 16%
Domestic Hospital Products 57,468,000 44,176,000 13,292,000 30%
International Products 98,112,000 86,098,000 12,014,000 14%

Total $ 494,919,000 $ 422,438,000 $ 72,481,000 17%

Increases in unit and dollar sales for the Company�s obstructive sleep apnea therapy devices and oxygen concentrator devices, as well as
increases in the sales of masks and accessories, helped to drive the increase in sales. These product lines, along with ventilation devices,
comprise the major part of the Company�s homecare product offerings. Sales of the Company�s hospital products, particularly the Vision and
Esprit ventilators, also contributed to the increase in sales in the 2002 fiscal year.

Fiscal year 2002 sales included approximately $12,700,000 of net sales for Novametrix. Included in the sales from Novametrix were
approximately $9,500,000 of net sales for cardio-respiratory hospital devices and approximately $3,200,000 of net sales for developmental
infant care products. Fiscal year 2002 sales also include one month of incremental sales for Fuji.
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Gross Profit - The Company�s gross profit was 47% for fiscal years 2002 and 2001. Gross profit in the 2002 fiscal year was favorably impacted
by higher revenue, the impact of higher gross margin from acquired entities, and a shift in sales mix, offset by costs associated with purchase
accounting adjustments and restructuring expenses described above.
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General and Administrative Expenses - General and administrative expenses were $60,719,000 (12% of net sales) for fiscal year 2002 and
$50,126,000 (12% of net sales) for fiscal year 2001. The increase in absolute dollars of expense for fiscal year 2002 was due in part to additional
general and administrative expenses for one of the Company�s two acquisitions, Novametrix. The increases in expenses for both years were due
primarily to increased information technology department expenses, credit and collection department expenses, and other spending consistent
with the growth of the Company�s business. Partially offsetting these increases in expenses in both fiscal years were lower operating expenses
due to the Company�s previous restructuring efforts. Fiscal year 2001 general and administrative expenses includes a previously disclosed
addition to the allowance for doubtful accounts of $1,200,000 (less than 1% of net sales) to address an uncollectible balance due from one of the
Company�s significant hospital distribution customers which ceased operations during that year.

Sales, Marketing and Commission Expenses - Sales, marketing and commission expenses were $86,189,000 (17% of net sales) for fiscal year
2002 as compared to $72,428,000 (17% of net sales) for fiscal year 2001. The increase in absolute dollars of expense was due primarily to
increased sales (resulting in higher commission and sales bonus expenses) and increased sales, marketing, product support, and service activity
levels across the Company�s product lines, partially offset by lower operating expenses due to the Company�s previous restructuring efforts. Fiscal
year 2002 also included additional sales, marketing and commission expenses for Novametrix and Fuji since their acquisition dates.

Research and Development Expenses - Research and development expenses were $17,317,000 (3% of net sales) for fiscal year 2002, as
compared to $15,281,000 (4% of net sales) for fiscal year 2001. The increase in absolute dollars was due to the Company�s continuing
commitment to research, development and new product introduction. The 2002 fiscal year also included additional research and development
expense for Novametrix. In the 2002 fiscal year, new products such as the REMstar Auto CPAP (Continuous Positive Airway Pressure) device,
the BiPAP Pro bi-level obstructive sleep apnea therapy unit, the H2 Heated Humidifier (the latest addition to the Company�s line of heated
humidifiers for CPAP and bi-level devices), and two new masks, the ComfortClassic Nasal Mask and the ComfortSelect Nasal Mask were
introduced.

Restructuring and Acquisition-Related Expenses - During fiscal year 2001, the Company incurred restructuring expenses of $800,000,
primarily for inventory write-offs of discontinued products related to the Company�s previously disclosed restructuring of its U.S. operations that
occurred during the 2000 fiscal year. Also during fiscal year 2001, the Westminster, Colorado facility, which had been closed in the
restructuring, was sold for a gain of approximately $2,000,000.

Interest and Other Expenses � Interest and other expenses were $1,568,000 for the year ended June 30, 2002 as compared to $6,516,000 for the
year ended June 30, 2001. The decrease was due to reductions in the amount of outstanding borrowings and interest rates under the Company�s
Revolving Credit Agreement.

Income Taxes - The Company�s effective income tax rate was 40% for fiscal years 2002 and 2001.

Net Income - As a result of the factors described above, the Company�s net income was $38,417,000 (8% of net sales) or $1.20 per diluted share
for fiscal year 2002 as compared to $33,571,000 (8% of net sales) or $1.09 per diluted share for fiscal year 2001.

FINANCIAL CONDITION, LIQUIDITY, AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
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The Company had working capital of $212,787,000 at June 30, 2003 and $198,966,000 at June 30, 2002. Net cash provided by operating
activities was $124,293,000 for the year ended June 30, 2003, compared to $87,484,000 for the year ended June 30, 2002 and $52,224,000 for
the year ended June 30, 2001. The increase in cash provided by operating activities for all years was primarily due to an increase in net income
before the impact of depreciation and amortization expense. Fiscal year 2003 cash flow was also positively impacted by increases in accrued
expenses. Fiscal year 2002 cash flow was positively impacted by a decrease in inventory and other current asset levels compared to increases in
these balances in prior years, as well as a positive impact of changes in accounts payable and accrued expenses compared to fiscal year 2001.
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Net cash used by investing activities was $47,444,000, $44,556,000, and $27,599,000 for fiscal years 2003, 2002, and 2001, respectively. The
majority of the cash used by investing activities for all periods represented capital expenditures, including the purchase of leasehold
improvements, production equipment, computer hardware and software, telecommunications and office equipment; in the current fiscal year, the
production of equipment leased to customers; and in the 2002 fiscal year, the purchase of the Company�s corporate headquarters facility. In the
current fiscal year, cash used by investing activities also includes transaction costs related to the Novametrix acquisition and the Company�s
acquisition of the BiliChek Non-invasive Bilirubin Analyzer product line from SpectRx, Inc. that is more fully described in Note P to the
Consolidated Financial Statements. In fiscal year 2002, cash used by investing activities also included the purchase price paid for Novametrix
and Fuji, net of cash acquired. In addition, cash used by investing activities in all three fiscal years included additional purchase price paid for a
previously acquired business pursuant to the terms of that acquisition agreement. The funding for investment activities in all periods was
provided by positive cash flow from operating activities and accumulated cash and cash equivalents.

Net cash used by financing activities consists primarily of repayments under the Company�s various long-term obligations, partially offset by
proceeds from the issuance of common stock under the Company�s stock option plans. Net cash used by financing activities was $43,284,000,
$7,914,000, and $16,899,000 for fiscal years 2003, 2002, and 2001, respectively. Debt pay-downs, net of borrowings, were $53,527,000,
$16,667,000, and $25,448,000 for fiscal years 2003, 2002, and 2001, respectively.

As previously disclosed, on August 1, 2002 one of the Company�s significant homecare distribution customers announced that it filed a voluntary
petition to reorganize under Chapter 11 of the U.S. Bankruptcy Code in order to restructure its bank debt. On July 1, 2003, the U.S. Bankruptcy
Court approved the customer�s reorganization plan. The confirmed plan allows the customer to continue its business operations uninterrupted,
and all creditors and vendors are to be paid 100% of all amounts they are owed, either immediately or over time with interest. The Company
received the first installment payment on its pre-petition balance in July 2003 as scheduled based on the reorganization plan.

The Company believes that its sources of funding � consisting of projected positive cash flow from operating activities, the availability of
additional funds under its revolving credit facility (totaling approximately $138,498,000 at June 30, 2003), and its accumulated cash and cash
equivalents � will be sufficient to meet its current and presently anticipated short-term and long-term future needs for operating activities
(including payments against restructuring accruals), investing activities, and financing activities (primarily consisting of scheduled payments on
long-term debt).

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS AND OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

The Company has contractual financial obligations and commercial financial commitments consisting primarily of long-term debt, capital lease
obligations, and non-cancelable operating leases. See Notes G and I to the Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information about
these obligations and commitments. The composition and nature of these obligations and commitments have not changed materially since June
30, 2002, other than the new Revolving Credit Agreement described below.

On August 19, 2002, the Company entered into a new Revolving Credit Agreement with a group of banks under which a total of $150,000,000 is
available through August 2005 with terms and financial covenants similar to those contained in the Company�s prior credit facility. The new
Revolving Credit Agreement is unsecured and contains certain financial covenants with which the Company must comply. The Company is
currently in compliance with these covenants. The interest rate on the revolving credit facility is based on a spread over the London Interbank
Borrowing Rate (�LIBOR�). As of June 30, 2003, the Company had $10,000,000 of outstanding borrowings under the revolving credit facility at
an interest rate of 2.09%. This amount was paid in its entirety on August 21, 2003.
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The following table summarizes significant contractual obligations and commercial commitments of the Company as of June 30, 2003:

Contractual Obligations and Commercial Commitments

Contractual Obligations Total

Payments Due by Period

Less Than

1 Year

1-3

Years

4-5

Years

Over 5

Years

Long-Term Debt $ 13,988,000 $ 10,545,000 $ 2,282,000 $ 998,000 $ 163,000
Capital Lease Obligations 20,833,000 7,779,000 9,344,000 3,710,000 �  
Operating Leases 31,356,000 7,263,000 10,150,000 6,880,000 7,063,000

Amounts payable to selling shareholder of Fuji that are
included in Other Non-Current Liabilities as of June 30,
2003 7,491,000 1,415,000 2,727,000 3,349,000 �  

Total Contractual Obligations $ 73,668,000 $ 27,002,000 $ 24,503,000 $ 14,937,000 $ 7,226,000

Other Commercial Commitments

Total Amounts

Committed

Amount of Commitment Expiration Per Period

Less Than

1 Year

1-3

Years

4-5

Years

Over 5

Years

Letters of Credit $ 1,912,000 $ 1,502,000 $ 410,000 $ �  $ �  

In addition to the amounts payable to the selling shareholder of Fuji that are included in other non-current liabilities as of June 30, 2003 as set
forth in the contractual obligations and commercial commitments table above, the Company is obligated to make future payments under earn-out
provisions pertaining to the acquisitions of Fuji and BiliChek, for which the amount of the obligations will not be known until the occurrence of
future events. See Note P to the Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information about these obligations.

In connection with customer leasing programs, the Company uses independent leasing companies for the purpose of providing financing to
certain customers for the purchase of the Company�s products. The Company is contingently liable, in the event of a customer default, to the
leasing companies within certain limits for unpaid installment receivables initiated by or transferred to the leasing companies. The transfer of
certain of these installment receivables meets the criteria of Financial Accounting Standards Board (�FASB�) Statement No. 140, �Accounting for
Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishment of Liabilities,� and therefore are not recorded on the Company�s financial
statements. The total exposure for unpaid installment receivables meeting these criteria and not recorded on the Company�s financial statements
was approximately $12,147,000 at June 30, 2003 as compared to $18,428,000 at June 30, 2002. Approximately 8% of the Company�s net sales
were made under these financing arrangements during the year ended June 30, 2003, of which a portion was made with recourse. The Company
is not dependent on these off-balance sheet arrangements.

The remainder of these installment receivables (consisting of installment receivables acquired as part of the Novametrix acquisition) do not meet
the criteria of FASB No. 140 and therefore are recorded as collateralized borrowing arrangements. Accordingly, at June 30, 2003 and June 30,
2002, the Company has included $1,049,000 and $11,826,000, respectively, of receivables sold with recourse in prepaid expenses and other

Edgar Filing: NATIONAL HEALTH INVESTORS INC - Form 8-K

Table of Contents 22



current assets, and has recorded offsetting amounts at those dates in accrued expenses and other current liabilities. Effective March 31, 2003, the
Company entered into an agreement with the third party financing company that is counter-party to these receivables. The terms of the
agreement place a cap on the Company�s recourse obligation at $1,049,000. The Company is required to place this amount in escrow, which will
be drawn to fund delinquent receivables that the Company is required to repurchase, up to the cap amount. Any amounts remaining in escrow
when the collateralized leases are fully paid will be returned to the Company, including interest.
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Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

The Company is exposed to market risk from changes in interest rates and foreign exchange rates.

Interest Rates - The Company�s primary interest rate risk relates to its long-term debt obligations. At June 30, 2003, the Company had total
long-term obligations, including the current portion of those obligations, of $34,821,000. Of that amount, $24,621,000 was in fixed rate
obligations and $10,200,000 was in variable rate obligations. Assuming a 10% increase in interest rates on the Company�s variable rate
obligations (i.e., an increase from the June 30, 2003 weighted-average interest rate of 2.08% to a weighted- average interest rate of 2.29%),
annual interest expense would be approximately $21,000 higher based on the June 30, 2003 outstanding balance of variable-rate obligations. The
Company repaid substantially all of its variable rate obligations in August 2003. The Company has no interest rate hedging agreements.

Foreign Exchange Rates - A substantial majority of the Company�s sales, expenses, and cash flows are transacted in U.S. dollars. The Company
also does business in various foreign currencies, primarily the Euro, the Japanese yen, the Hong Kong dollar and the Chinese yuan. For the year
ended June 30, 2003, sales at subsidiaries with functional currencies other than the U.S. dollar totaled $111,359,000, or approximately 18% of
total sales. For the year ended June 30, 2003, pre-tax income at subsidiaries with functional currencies other than the U.S. dollar totaled
$22,238,000, or approximately 30% of total pre-tax income (or 24% of pre-tax income, excluding the restructuring and acquisition-related
expenses disclosed in Notes O and P of the Consolidated Financial Statements). An adverse change of 10% in exchange rates would have
resulted in a decrease in sales of $10,124,000 and a decrease in pre-tax income of $2,022,000 for the year ended June 30, 2003. The Company�s
subsidiaries that operate in Germany, France, Japan, Hong Kong and China have certain sales, expenses, and accounts receivable and payable
denominated in U.S. dollars in addition to sales, expenses, and accounts receivable and payable in their local currencies that further mitigate the
impact of foreign exchange rate changes. Foreign currency losses included in the determination of the Company�s net income were $443,000 for
the year ended June 30, 2003. As of June 30, 2003, the Company had not hedged foreign currency risks. Effective July 1, 2003, the Company
acquired foreign currency option contracts to hedge a portion of its Japanese yen foreign currency risks for the 2004 fiscal year.

Inflation - Inflation has not had a significant effect on the Company�s business during the periods discussed.

NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In January 2003, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 46, �Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities,� in an effort to expand upon and strengthen
existing accounting guidance that addresses when a company should include in its financial statements the assets, liabilities and activities of
variable interest entities, including special-purpose entities or off-balance sheet structures. The consolidation requirements of FIN No. 46 apply
immediately to variable interest entities created after January 31, 2003. The consolidation requirements apply to older entities in the first fiscal
year or interim period beginning after June 15, 2003. Certain of the disclosure requirements apply in all financial statements issued after January
31, 2003, regardless of when the variable interest entity was established. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of FIN No. 46 on its
financial position and results of operations.

In April 2003, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 149, �Amendment of Statement 133 on Derivative Instruments
and Hedging Activities.� This statement amends and clarifies financial accounting and reporting for derivative instruments, including certain
derivative instruments embedded in other contracts and for hedging activities under FASB No. 133. This Statement is effective for contracts
entered into or modified after June 30, 2003 and for hedging relationships designated after June 30, 2003. The Company is currently evaluating
the provisions of FASB No. 149, and will assess the prospective impact on its financial position and results of operations for derivative contracts
entered into after June 30, 2003.
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In May 2003, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 150, �Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments with
Characteristics of both Liabilities and Equity.� This statement affects the issuer�s accounting for three types of freestanding financial statements:
mandatorily redeemable shares, put and forward purchase contracts that require the issuer to buy back some of its shares in exchange for cash or
other assets, and certain obligations that can be settled in shares. This statement is effective for all financial instruments entered into or modified
after May 31, 2003, and otherwise effective at the beginning of the first interim period beginning after June 15, 2003. The Company believes the
impact of FASB No. 150 on its financial position and results of operations will not be material.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Company�s Consolidated Financial Statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States, which require the Company to make estimates and assumptions that may affect the reported financial condition and results of operations
should actual results differ. The Company bases its estimates and assumptions on the best available information and believes them to be
reasonable under the circumstances. The Company believes that of its significant accounting policies, the following may involve a higher degree
of judgment and complexity.

Revenue Recognition - The Company�s revenues are recognized when title to product passes to the customer, which generally occurs upon
shipment to a customer location and, in the case of rental revenue and long-term service contracts, is recognized ratably over the period the
product is rented or service is performed. The Company�s revenue transactions are sometimes made pursuant to standard terms and conditions
included in distributor agreements and customer contracts. These contracts generally include price lists that apply to specified products shipped
to customers during the terms of their agreement. These contracts also generally include rights of return provisions that only permit customers to
return sold product in the case of defective product or order entry, shipping, or similar error made by the Company. Product returns are generally
insignificant in relation to net sales. Certain customers� and group purchasing organizations� contracts provide customers with price rebates based
on their level of purchases from the Company. Rebates are accrued by the Company as a reduction in net sales as they are earned by customers.
Price discounts that may be awarded to customers for payment of invoices within specified periods are recorded as reductions to net sales at the
time of payment and are generally insignificant in relation to net sales. The Securities and Exchange Commission�s Staff Accounting Bulletin
(�SAB�) No. 101, �Revenue Recognition,� provides guidance on the application of generally accepted accounting principles to selected revenue
recognition issues. The Company has concluded that its revenue recognition policy is appropriate and in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles and SAB No. 101.

Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts Receivable - Accounts receivable are reduced by an allowance for amounts that may become
uncollectible in the future. Substantially all of the Company�s receivables are due from healthcare product providers, distributors, and hospitals.
The Company�s customers are located throughout the United States and around the world. A significant portion of products sold to providers,
distributors, and hospitals, both foreign and domestic, is ultimately funded through government reimbursement programs or through private
insurance programs. As a consequence, changes in these programs can have an adverse impact on distributor and hospital liquidity and
profitability. In addition, because a concentration of market share exists in the homecare product industry in the United States among national
and large regional providers, the Company experiences a comparable concentration of credit risk with these customers. The estimated allowance
for uncollectible amounts is based primarily on the Company�s evaluation of the payment pattern and financial condition of its customers. In
addition, the Company is contingently liable, within certain limits, in the event of a customer default on unpaid installment receivables initiated
by or transferred to several independent leasing companies in connection with customer leasing programs. The Company monitors the collection
status of these installment receivables and provides amounts necessary for estimated losses in the allowance for doubtful accounts.
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Inventories and Related Allowance for Obsolete and Excess Inventory - Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market value and have
been reduced by an allowance for excess and obsolete inventories. The estimated allowance is based on the Company�s review of inventories on
hand compared to historical and estimated future usage and sales. If it is determined that inventory on hand is in excess of estimated future usage
and sales because of product obsolescence, changes in customer demand, or other reasons, additional inventory reserves may need to be
provided. The establishment of these additional reserves may have an adverse impact on earnings, depending on the extent and amount of
inventory affected.

Intangible Assets - Intangible and product technology related assets are amortized to expense over their useful lives. These useful lives are
based on the Company�s estimates of the period that the assets will generate positive cash flows. Intangible assets are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of such assets may not be recoverable. If such carrying amounts
are determined to be unrecoverable because of changes in technology, extended delays in obtaining regulatory approval, competition, or other
reasons, the carrying amounts would be written down to their fair market values. These adjustments may have an adverse impact on earnings,
depending on the significance of the carrying amounts and the extent of the required adjustments.

Contingencies - As a normal part of its business operations, the Company incurs liabilities that may be difficult to quantify precisely, such as
future warranty obligations, potential liabilities relating to legal or regulatory matters, and tax exposures. The Company follows the requirements
of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 5, �Accounting for Contingencies,� which dictate when a charge to income should be taken to
accrue for a loss contingency. These requirements necessitate the application of judgment regarding the likelihood and amount of the liability.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT FOR PURPOSES OF THE �SAFE HARBOR� PROVISIONS OF THE PRIVATE SECURITIES
REFORM ACT OF 1995.

The statements contained in this Annual Report, including those contained in �Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operations
and Financial Condition,� along with statements in reports filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission, external documents and oral
presentations which are not historical are �forward-looking statements� within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as
amended, and Section 21B of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. These forward-looking statements represent the Company�s
present expectations or beliefs concerning future events. The Company cautions that such statements are qualified by important factors that
could cause actual results to differ materially from the expected results included in the forward-looking statements. Those factors include, but
are not limited to, the following: foreign currency fluctuations, regulations and other factors affecting operations and sales outside the United
States including potential future effects of the change in sovereignty of Hong Kong, customer consolidation and concentration, increasing price
competition and other competitive factors in the sale of products, the success of the Company�s marketing, sales, and promotion programs,
interest rate fluctuations, intellectual property and related litigation, other litigation, successful integration of acquisitions, FDA and other
government regulation, anticipated levels of earnings and revenues, and third party reimbursement.
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Report of Independent Auditors

Board of Directors and Shareholders

Respironics, Inc. and Subsidiaries

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Respironics, Inc. and subsidiaries as of June 30, 2003 and 2002, and the
related consolidated statements of operations, shareholders� equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended June 30, 2003.
Our audits also included the financial statement schedule listed in the Index at Item 15(a). These financial statements and schedule are the
responsibility of the Company�s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and schedule based on our
audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of
Respironics, Inc. and subsidiaries as of June 30, 2003 and 2002, and the consolidated results of their operations and their cash flows for each of
the three years in the period ended June 30, 2003, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. Also, in our
opinion, the related financial statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly in
all material respects the information set forth therein.

As discussed in Note A to the consolidated financial statements, the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142,
�Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,� effective July 1, 2002.

/s/    Ernst & Young LLP

Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania

July 22, 2003
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

RESPIRONICS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

At June 30 2003 2002

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 95,900,114 $ 62,334,684
Trade accounts receivable 128,126,999 121,281,073
Inventories 83,986,140 86,632,027
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 7,890,194 23,875,193
Deferred income tax benefits 24,111,838 19,189,948

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 340,015,285 313,312,925

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Land 2,868,310 2,867,555
Buildings 16,888,036 16,049,671
Production and office equipment 218,839,491 188,806,072
Leasehold improvements 7,630,418 6,413,872

246,226,255 214,137,170
Less allowances for depreciation and amortization 147,546,282 114,202,311

98,679,973 99,934,859

OTHER ASSETS 34,591,712 33,802,545

GOODWILL 108,909,352 103,860,749

TOTAL ASSETS $ 582,196,322 $ 550,911,078

June 30

2003

June 30

2002

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS� EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 40,531,413 $ 39,081,748
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities 68,389,269 46,419,566
Current portion of long-term obligations 18,307,876 28,845,785

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 127,228,558 114,347,099

LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS 16,513,243 59,502,381

OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 11,585,202 9,341,531

SHAREHOLDERS� EQUITY
375,057 368,858
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Common Stock, $.01 par value; authorized 100,000,000 shares; issued 37,505,700 shares at June 30,
2003 and 36,885,795 shares at June 30, 2002; outstanding 33,957,221 shares at June 30, 2003 and
33,293,070 shares at June 30, 2002
Additional capital 226,884,681 213,837,023
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (3,557,902) (2,718,213)
Retained earnings 245,031,878 198,450,389
Treasury stock (41,864,395) (42,217,990)

TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS� EQUITY 426,869,319 367,720,067

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY $ 582,196,322 $ 550,911,078

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

RESPIRONICS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Year ended June 30 2003 2002 2001

Net sales $ 629,817,447 $ 494,918,654 $ 422,437,862
Cost of goods sold 310,385,469 260,795,012 224,087,110

319,431,978 234,123,642 198,350,752

General and administrative expenses 85,766,678 60,718,793 50,125,593
Sales, marketing and commission expenses 116,299,669 86,188,885 72,428,211
Research and development expenses 24,047,538 17,317,462 15,281,233
Restructuring and acquisition-related expenses (credit) 17,788,719 4,294,120 (1,908,581)
Interest and other expenses 639,520 1,568,165 6,516,252

244,542,124 170,087,425 142,442,708

INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXES 74,889,854 64,036,217 55,908,044
Income taxes 28,308,365 25,619,349 22,336,760

NET INCOME $ 46,581,489 $ 38,416,868 $ 33,571,284

Basic earnings per share $ 1.39 $ 1.24 $ 1.12

Basic shares outstanding 33,585,173 31,079,282 29,962,366

Diluted earnings per share $ 1.36 $ 1.20 $ 1.09

Diluted shares outstanding 34,344,003 32,008,359 30,886,043

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS� EQUITY

RESPIRONICS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Common Stock

Additional

Capital

Accumulated

Comprehensive

Income (Loss)

Retained

Earnings

Treasury Stock

TotalShares Amount Shares Amount

BALANCE AT JUNE
30, 2000 33,182,565 $ 331,826 $ 110,795,650 $ (3,131,703) $ 126,462,237 3,733,498 $ (43,352,117) $ 191,105,893
Shares sold pursuant
to stock option and
purchase plans 831,220 8,312 7,777,144 �  �  (94,329) 763,750 8,549,206
Income tax benefit
from exercise of stock
options �  �  3,147,495 �  �  �  �  3,147,495
Comprehensive
income (loss):
Net income for the
year ended June 30,
2001 �  �  �  �  33,571,284 �  �  33,571,284
Foreign currency
translation
adjustments �  �  �  (1,105,730) �  �  �  (1,105,730)

Total comprehensive
income (loss) �  �  �  (1,105,730) 33,571,284 �  �  32,465,554

BALANCE AT JUNE
30, 2001 34,013,785 340,138 121,720,289 (4,237,433) 160,033,521 3,639,169 (42,588,367) 235,268,148
Shares sold pursuant
to stock option and
purchase plans 472,617 4,726 8,377,899 �  �  �  �  8,382,625
Net acquisition and
use of treasury stock �  �  �  �  �  (46,444) 370,377 370,377
Income tax benefit
from exercise of stock
options �  �  2,766,453 �  �  �  �  2,766,453
Stock issued for
business acquired 2,399,393 23,994 80,972,382 �  �  �  �  80,996,376
Comprehensive
income:
Net income for the
year ended June 30,
2002 �  �  �  �  38,416,868 �  �  38,416,868
Foreign currency
translation
adjustments �  �  �  1,519,220 �  �  �  1,519,220

�  �  �  1,519,220 38,416,868 �  �  39,936,088
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Total comprehensive
income

BALANCE AT JUNE
30, 2002 36,885,795 368,858 213,837,023 (2,718,213) 198,450,389 3,592,725 (42,217,990) 367,720,067
Shares sold pursuant
to stock option and
purchase plans 619,905 6,199 9,883,283 �  �  (44,246) 353,595 10,243,077
Income tax benefit
from exercise of stock
options �  �  3,164,375 �  �  �  �  3,164,375
Comprehensive
income:
Net income for the
year ended June 30,
2003 �  �  �  �  46,581,489 �  �  46,581,489
Foreign currency
translation
adjustments �  �  �  (839,689) �  �  �  (839,689)

Total comprehensive
income (loss) �  �  �  (839,689) 46,581,489 �  �  45,741,800

BALANCE AT JUNE
30, 2003 37,505,700 $ 375,057 $ 226,884,681 $ (3,557,902) $ 245,031,878 3,548,479 $ (41,864,395) $ 426,869,319

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

RESPIRONICS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Year ended June 30 2003 2002 2001

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income $ 46,581,489 $ 38,416,868 $ 33,571,284
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation 39,268,196 28,578,753 23,166,376
Amortization 7,684,000 5,653,328 5,171,364
Income tax benefit from exercise of stock options 3,164,375 2,766,453 3,147,495
Provision for asset write-offs �  2,005,722 �  
Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment �  �  (2,302,000)
Provision for bad debts 4,626,000 3,275,000 2,000,000
Provision (benefit) for deferred income taxes (1,216,000) 3,251,495 2,949,095
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable (11,471,926) (7,905,452) (3,344,649)
Inventories and other current assets 3,271,232 9,052,239 (5,742,168)
Accounts payable and other current liabilities 31,662,346 5,728,845 (4,448,085)
Other assets and liabilities 723,744 (3,339,608) (1,944,496)

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 124,293,456 87,483,643 52,224,216

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (42,075,069) (39,829,553) (28,236,464)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 3,835,000 �  1,425,000
Acquisition of intangible assets (2,120,380) �  �  
Acquisition of business, net of cash acquired (7,083,607) (4,726,200) (787,580)

NET CASH USED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES (47,444,056) (44,555,753) (27,599,044)

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from long-term obligations �  4,531,085 �  
Payment on long-term obligations (53,527,047) (21,198,203) (25,447,952)
Issuance of common stock 10,243,077 8,753,002 8,549,206

NET CASH USED BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES (43,283,970) (7,914,116) (16,898,746)

INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 33,565,430 35,013,774 7,726,426

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 62,334,684 27,320,910 19,594,484

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF PERIOD $ 95,900,114 $ 62,334,684 $ 27,320,910

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RESPIRONICS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTE A � SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Consolidation:

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Respironics, Inc. (the �Company�) and its wholly and majority owned subsidiaries.
All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Cash and Cash Equivalents:

The Company considers all highly liquid investments with maturities of 30 days or less when purchased to be cash and cash equivalents. Cash
and cash equivalents are stated at cost, which approximates market.

Inventories:

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost (determined on a first-in, first-out moving average basis) or market.

Property, Plant and Equipment:

Property, plant and equipment is recorded on the basis of cost. Costs incurred to purchase or develop software for internal use, including
upgrades and enhancements, are capitalized during the software application development stage in accordance with Statement of Position No.
98-1, �Accounting for the Costs of Computer Software Developed or Obtained for Internal Use.� Depreciation is computed using the straight-line
method based upon the estimated useful lives of the respective assets, which are 30 years for buildings and range from two to five years for
production and office equipment. Leasehold improvements are depreciated over their lease terms, or useful lives if shorter. Amortization of
assets under capital leases is included in depreciation expense. Maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred.

Capitalized Software Production Costs:
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Software development costs have been capitalized when technological feasibility was established and are being amortized to the cost of goods
sold over the estimated economic lives (generally three to seven years) of the products that include such software. Total net capitalized software
production costs were $8,810,000 and $6,736,000 at June 30, 2003 and 2002, respectively. During the fiscal years ended June 30, 2003, 2002,
and 2001, the Company recorded $1,785,000, $428,000, and $403,000, respectively, of amortization expense related to capitalized software
production costs.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets:

Goodwill is the cost in excess of the fair value of net assets of businesses acquired. In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board
(�FASB�) issued Statement No. 141, �Business Combinations,� and Statement No. 142, �Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,� effective for fiscal
years beginning after December 15, 2001. Under these rules, goodwill and intangible assets deemed to have indefinite lives are no longer
amortized but are subject to annual impairment tests in accordance with the Statements. Other intangible assets continue to be amortized over
their useful lives. The Company applied the provisions of FASB No. 141 to account for business combinations consummated after July 1, 2001,
including the acquisitions of Novametrix Medical Systems Inc. (�Novametrix�), Fuji RC Kabushiki Kaisha (�Fuji�), and BiliChek discussed in Note
P to these Consolidated Financial Statements.

Effective July 1, 2002, the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142, �Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,�
under which goodwill and intangible assets deemed to have indefinite lives are no longer amortized but are subject to annual impairment tests.
The Company performed the required transitional impairment test with the adoption of FASB No. 142 and has determined that no impairment
exists as of July 1, 2002. The Company has also performed its first annual impairment test as of December 31, 2002 and determined that no
impairment exists. The Company will update this annual test as of December 31 in future years, and on an interim basis as determined necessary
in accordance with FASB No. 142.
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Effective July 1, 2002, the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 144, �Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal
of Long-Lived Assets.� FASB No. 144 superseded FASB No. 121, �Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived
Assets to be Disposed Of,� however it retained the fundamental provisions of that statement related to the recognition and measurement of the
impairment of long-lived assets to be held and used. The Company evaluates the carrying value of long-lived assets, including intangible assets,
to be held and used when events and circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recovered. Such evaluation
considers projected future operating results, trends and other circumstances. If factors indicated long-lived assets could be impaired, the
Company would use an estimate of the related undiscounted future cash flows over the remaining life of the long-lived asset in measuring
whether the asset is recoverable. If such an analysis indicated that impairment had occurred, the Company would adjust the book value of the
long-lived asset to fair value. Assets to be disposed of are reported at the lower of the carrying amount or fair value, less costs to sell.

Product Warranties:

Estimated future warranty costs related to certain products are charged to operations in the period in which the related revenue is recognized.

Comprehensive Income:

Comprehensive income consists of net income and foreign currency translation adjustments and is presented in the Consolidated Statements of
Shareholders� Equity. The Company does not provide for U.S. income taxes on foreign currency translation adjustments since it does not provide
for such taxes on the undistributed earnings of foreign subsidiaries.

Foreign Currency Translation:

Foreign currency assets and liabilities are translated into U.S. dollars at the rate of exchange existing at the statement date or historical rates
depending upon the nature of the account. Income and expense amounts are translated at the average of the monthly exchange rates.
Adjustments resulting from these translations are credited or charged directly to accumulated comprehensive income (loss). Gains and losses
resulting from foreign currency transactions, denominated in other than the functional currency of the entity, are credited or charged directly to
income.

Stock Options:

Stock options are granted to certain employees and certain members of the Company�s Board of Directors at the fair market value of the
Company�s stock on the date of the grant. Proceeds from the exercise of common stock options are credited to shareholders� equity at the date the
options are exercised. There are no charges or credits to income with respect to these options. The Company follows the requirements of
Accounting Principles Board (�APB�) Opinion No. 25, �Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,� as amended, in accounting for stock-based
compensation.

Earnings per Share:
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Basic earnings per share are based on the weighted-average number of shares actually outstanding. Diluted earnings per share are based on the
weighted-average number of shares actually outstanding and dilutive potential shares, such as dilutive stock options and warrants which are
determined using the treasury stock method.

Revenue Recognition:

Revenue is recognized from sales when title to product passes to the customer, which generally occurs upon shipment to a customer location.
Rental and service revenues are recognized ratably over the period the product is rented or service is performed.
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Shipping and Handling Costs:

Shipping and handling costs are expensed as incurred and are included in cost of goods sold.

Advertising Costs:

Advertising costs are expensed during the period in which they are incurred. Total advertising expenses for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2003,
2002, and 2001 were $1,516,000, $965,000, and $805,000, respectively.

Income Taxes:

Provisions for income taxes include deferred taxes resulting from temporary differences in income for financial and tax purposes using the
liability method. Such temporary differences result primarily from differences in the carrying value of assets and liabilities.

The Company does not provide for federal income taxes on the undistributed earnings of its foreign subsidiaries (other than deemed dividends
which are taxed currently) because such earnings are reinvested and, in the opinion of management, will continue to be reinvested indefinitely.

Use of Estimates:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ
from those estimates.

Changes in Presentation of Comparative Financial Statements:

Certain amounts in the June 30, 2002 and 2001 financial statements were reclassified to conform with the presentation in the current period.

NOTE B � CASH EQUIVALENTS
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Cash equivalents consist primarily of money market accounts and certificates of deposit issued by large commercial banks located in the United
States, Hong Kong, Japan, Germany, and France.

NOTE C � ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Trade accounts receivable in the Consolidated Balance Sheets is net of allowances for doubtful accounts of $12,168,000 as of June 30, 2003 and
$20,046,000 as of June 30, 2002. Previously reserved accounts receivable in the amount of $12,504,000 were written off during the year ended
June 30, 2003.

NOTE D � INVENTORIES

Inventories consisted of the following:

June 30

2003 2002

Raw materials $ 18,091,000 $ 24,015,000
Work-in-process 8,727,000 6,555,000
Finished goods 57,168,000 56,062,000

$ 83,986,000 $ 86,632,000
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NOTE E � GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Changes in the carrying amount of goodwill for the year ended June 30, 2003 were as follows:

Balance at June 30, 2002 $ 103,861,000
Goodwill on businesses acquired 4,798,000
Additional purchase price to former owner of business acquired (final installment) 250,000

Balance at June 30, 2003 $ 108,909,000

Net income and earnings per share excluding goodwill amortization expense are as follows:

Year Ended

June 30, 2003 June 30, 2002 June 30, 2001

Net income as reported $ 46,581,000 $ 38,417,000 $ 33,571,000
Goodwill amortization expense (net of tax) �  3,302,000 3,302,000

Net income excluding goodwill amortization expense $ 46,581,000 $ 41,719,000 $ 36,873,000

Basic earnings per share:
Net income as reported $ 1.39 $ 1.24 $ 1.12
Goodwill amortization expense (net of tax) �  0.11 $ 0.11

Basic earnings per share excluding goodwill amortization expense $ 1.39 $ 1.35 $ 1.23

Diluted earnings per share:
Net income as reported $ 1.36 $ 1.20 $ 1.09
Goodwill amortization expense (net of tax) �  0.10 $ 0.11

Diluted earnings per share excluding goodwill amortization expense $ 1.36 $ 1.30 $ 1.20

The Company�s intangible assets are comprised of product-related intellectual property acquired from third parties, the appraised fair market
values of product-related intellectual property and employee contracts obtained through business acquisitions (including the acquisitions
disclosed in Note P), and patent registration costs. Intangible assets at June 30 are summarized below, net of accumulated amortization:

2003 2002

Product-related intellectual property $ 26,143,000 $ 26,876,000
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Patent registration costs 1,827,000 1,447,000
Employee contracts 304,000 309,000

Total intangible assets $ 28,274,000 $ 28,632,000

Intangible asset amortization is computed using the straight-line method based upon the estimated useful lives of the respective assets, which
range from one to sixteen years.

Intangible asset amortization expense was $5,899,000, $2,716,000, and $1,244,000 during the years ended June 30, 2003, 2002, and 2001,
respectively. The estimated aggregate intangible asset amortization expenses for the next five years are as follows:

2004 $ 3,971,000
2005 3,830,000
2006 3,585,000
2007 3,104,000
2008 2,016,000
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NOTE F � ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accrued expenses and other current liabilities at June 30 consist of the following:

2003 2002

Promotional Programs $ 5,589,000 $ 3,981,000
Product Warranties 4,848,000 4,585,000
Restructuring and Acquisition-Related 9,997,000 3,187,000
Recourse Obligations 1,049,000 11,826,000
Deferred Service Revenues 3,097,000 1,735,000
Compensation and Related 22,229,000 13,827,000
Taxes 12,545,000 3,567,000
Other 9,035,000 3,712,000

TOTAL $ 68,389,000 $ 46,420,000

Generally, the Company�s standard product warranties are for a one- or two-year period (based on the specific product sold and country in which
the Company does business) that covers both parts and labor. The Company provides for the estimated cost of product warranties at the time
revenue is recognized. The Company�s product warranty liability reflects management�s best estimate of probable liability under its product
warranties. Management estimates the liability based on the Company�s stated warranty policies, which project the estimated warranty obligation
on a product-by-product basis based on the historical frequency of claims, the cost to replace or repair its products under warranty, and the
number of products under warranty based on the warranty terms and historical units shipped. The Company periodically assesses the adequacy
of its recorded warranty liabilities and adjusts the amounts as necessary. The Company also engages in the sale of extended warranties for which
revenue is deferred and recognized over the warranty terms, which are generally between two and eight years. Changes in the liability for
product warranty and deferred service revenues associated with these service programs for the year ended June 30, 2003 are as follows:

Product Warranties

Balance as of June 30, 2002 $ 4,585,000
Warranty accruals during the year 4,092,000
Service costs incurred during the year (3,829,000)

Balance as of June 30, 2003 $ 4,848,000

Deferred Service Revenues

Balance as of June 30, 2002 $ 1,735,000
Revenues deferred during the year 2,121,000
Amounts recorded as revenue during the year (759,000)

Balance as of June 30, 2003 $ 3,097,000
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NOTE G � LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

Long-term obligations consist of the following:

June 30

2003 2002

Revolving Credit Agreement, Due in August 2005 including interest at a floating rate
(2.09% at June 30, 2003) $ 10,000,000 $ 62,900,000

Bank Debt with varying maturities (final maturity in May 2007) including interest rates
ranging from 0.8% to 2.2% 2,582,000 8,676,000

Capital Lease Obligations, payable in monthly installments with varying completion dates
through April 2008 including interest rates ranging from 2.1% to 3.5% 20,833,000 14,625,000

Other 1,406,000 2,147,000

34,821,000 88,348,000
Less current portion 18,308,000 28,846,000

$ 16,513,000 $ 59,502,000

37

Edgar Filing: NATIONAL HEALTH INVESTORS INC - Form 8-K

Table of Contents 45



Table of Contents

On August 19, 2002, the Company entered into a new Revolving Credit Agreement with a group of banks under which a total of $150,000,000 is
available through August 2005, replacing a $125,000,000 Commercial Bank Credit Agreement that had similar

terms. The new Revolving Credit Agreement is unsecured and contains certain financial covenants with which the Company must comply,
including those relating to current ratio, ratio of total liabilities to tangible net worth, minimum tangible net worth, leverage, and interest
coverage (as these terms are defined in the Revolving Credit Agreement). The Company is currently in compliance with these covenants. The
interest rate on the revolving credit facility is based on a spread over the London Interbank Borrowing Rate (�LIBOR�). The Commercial Bank
Revolving Credit Agreement includes a commitment fee, currently equal to 0.20%, on the unused portion of the facility. In August 2003, the
Company paid the remaining $10,000,000 of borrowings that were outstanding under the Revolving Credit Agreement. This amount is classified
with the current portion of long-term obligations in the Consolidated Balance Sheet as of June 30, 2003.

The Capital Lease Obligations are primarily for equipment rented to outside customers by the Company�s Fuji subsidiary. Other long-term
obligations in the above table include an Economic Development Revenue Bond, Industrial Development Authority Loans, and a
Redevelopment Authority Loan that are secured by mortgages on the Company�s manufacturing facility in Murrysville, Pennsylvania. Proceeds
from the bonds and the loans were used to finance the construction and expansion of some of the Company�s facilities.

Scheduled maturities of long-term obligations for the next five years are as follows:

Maturities of

Long-Term Debt

2004 $ 18,308,000
2005 5,853,000
2006 5,773,000
2007 3,771,000
2008 937,000
Thereafter 179,000

TOTAL $ 34,821,000

Interest paid was $2,607,000, $2,983,000, and $7,870,000 for the years ended June 30, 2003, 2002, and 2001, respectively.

NOTE H � FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of financial instruments:

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
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The carrying amount approximates fair value because of the short maturity of those investments.

LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

The fair values of long-term debt obligations are established from the market values of similar issues. The carrying amounts of the Company�s
obligations approximate their fair values at June 30, 2003 and 2002.

NOTE I � OPERATING LEASES

The Company leases its service centers, its central distribution center, and certain of its offices, warehouses and manufacturing facilities in the
United States and also leases its offices, warehouses and manufacturing facilities in the Far East and in Europe. Certain of these leases contain
renewal options and rent escalation clauses.
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The minimum rentals due under noncancelable leases with recurring terms of one year or more as of June 30, 2003 are as follows:

Year Ending June 30 Amount

2004 $ 7,263,000
2005 5,842,000
2006 4,308,000
2007 3,657,000
2008 3,223,000
Thereafter 7,063,000

TOTAL $ 31,356,000

Total rent expense for the years ended June 30, 2003, 2002, and 2001, was $8,320,000, $5,255,000, and $4,605,000, respectively.

NOTE J � CONTINGENCIES

Litigation:

As previously disclosed, ResMed Corp., ResMed, Inc., and ResMed Ltd. (collectively, �ResMed�) filed an action in Federal District Court against
the Company on October 11, 2002 alleging that its manufacture and sale of certain nasal masks infringe seven U.S. patents (the �ResMed
Patents�). The complaint also alleged a number of related causes of action. In its complaint, ResMed sought injunctive relief, actual and punitive
damages, and an award of three times actual damages because of the Company�s alleged willful infringement of the ResMed Patents. In its
answer to ResMed�s complaint, the Company denied, in all material respects, the allegations of the complaint.

On October 15, 2002, the Company filed its own Federal District Court action against ResMed Ltd. seeking a declaratory judgment that the
seven ResMed Patents are invalid and/or unenforceable, and that the Company does not infringe the same. The declaratory judgment action also
sought attorneys� fees as well as relief as to the remaining allegations in the ResMed complaint.

The Company was also party to actions filed in a Federal District Court in January 1995 and June 1996 in which ResMed alleged that the
Company�s manufacture and sale in the United States of certain products infringes four of ResMed�s patents. In its response to these actions, the
Company denied the allegations and had separately sought judgment that the claims under the patents are invalid or unenforceable and that the
Company does not infringe upon the patents. The January 1995 and June 1996 actions were consolidated. The Court granted the Company�s
various motions for summary judgment and held that the Company does not infringe any of ResMed�s four patents at issue.

Subsequent to June 30, 2003, the Company and ResMed reached a settlement on all of the aforementioned litigation. The settlement is not
material to the Company�s results of operations, financial condition or cash flows.
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The Company is, as a normal part of its business operations, a party to other legal proceedings in addition to those previously described by
filings of the Company. Legal counsel has been retained for each proceeding and none of these proceedings is expected to have a material
adverse impact on the Company�s results of operations or financial condition.

Contingent Obligations Under Recourse Provisions:

In connection with customer leasing programs, the Company uses independent leasing companies to provide financing to certain customers for
the purchase of the Company�s products. The Company is contingently liable, in the event of a customer default, to the leasing companies within
certain limits for unpaid installment receivables initiated by or transferred to the leasing companies. The transfer of certain of these installment
receivables meets the criteria of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 140, �Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Financial
Assets and Extinguishment of Liabilities,� and therefore are not recorded on the Company�s financial statements. The total exposure for unpaid
installment receivables meeting these criteria and not recorded on the Company�s financial statements was approximately $12,147,000 at June
30, 2003 as compared to $18,428,000 at June 30, 2002. Approximately 8% of the Company�s net sales were made under these financing
arrangements during the year ended June 30, 2003, of which a portion was made with recourse.
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The remainder of these installment receivables (consisting of installment receivables acquired as part of the Novametrix acquisition) do not meet
the criteria of FASB No. 140 and therefore are recorded as collateralized borrowing arrangements. Accordingly, at June 30, 2003 and June 30,
2002, the Company has included $1,049,000 and $11,826,000, respectively, of receivables sold with recourse in prepaid expenses and other
current assets, and has recorded offsetting amounts at those dates in accrued expenses and other current liabilities. Effective March 31, 2003, the
Company entered into an agreement with the third party financing company that is counter-party to these receivables. The terms of the
agreement place a cap on the Company�s recourse obligation at $1,049,000. The Company is required to place this amount in escrow, which will
be drawn to fund delinquent receivables that the Company is required to repurchase, up to the cap amount. Any amounts remaining in escrow
when the collateralized leases are fully paid will be returned to the Company, including interest.

NOTE K � INCOME TAXES

Income (loss) before income taxes consisted of the following:

Year Ended June 30

2003 2002 2001

United States $ 53,223,000 $ 55,870,000 $ 56,058,000
Foreign 21,667,000 8,166,000 (150,000)

TOTAL $ 74,890,000 $ 64,036,000 $ 55,908,000

Income taxes (benefit) consisted of:

Year Ended June 30

2003 2002 2001

Current:
Federal $ 19,683,000 $ 16,874,000 $ 17,157,000
Foreign 6,163,000 1,617,000 (596,000)
State 3,678,000 3,876,000 2,826,000
Tax benefit from exercise of stock options (3,164,000) (2,766,000) (3,147,000)

26,360,000 19,601,000 16,240,000

Deferred:
Federal (851,000) 2,922,000 2,581,000
State (365,000) 330,000 369,000

(1,216,000) 3,252,000 2,950,000

Credit to additional paid-in capital for tax benefit from stock option
exercises 3,164,000 2,766,000 3,147,000
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TOTAL INCOME TAXES $ 28,308,000 $ 25,619,000 $ 22,337,000
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The difference between the statutory U.S. federal income tax rate and the Company�s effective income tax rate is explained below:

Year Ended June 30

2003 2002 2001

Statutory federal income tax rate 35% 35% 35%
Increases (decreases):
State taxes, net of federal benefit 3 4 4
Foreign taxes (2) (2) 0
Tax credits (2) (1) (1)
Non-deductible expenses 3 3 1
Other items, net 1 1 1

EFFECTIVE INCOME TAX RATE 38% 40% 40%

Deferred income tax assets consist of the following:

June 30

2003 2002

Allowance for bad debts $ 4,907,000 $ 6,887,000
Depreciation and amortization (386,000) (873,000)
Inventory reserves 2,612,000 2,299,000
Inter-company profit in inventories 3,398,000 552,000
Product warranty reserves 2,629,000 1,935,000
Restructuring reserves 4,654,000 1,097,000
Net operating loss carry-forward, limited by Section 382 713,000 1,678,000
Business credits carry-forward, limited by Section 383 712,000 712,000
Foreign net operating loss carry-forward 920,000 1,720,000
Other 3,953,000 3,183,000

TOTAL $ 24,112,000 $ 19,190,000

Undistributed earnings of the foreign subsidiaries on which no U.S. income tax has been provided amounted to $28,003,000 at June 30, 2003.

Income taxes paid were $13,710,000, $19,170,000, and $19,533,000 for the years ended June 30, 2003, 2002, and 2001, respectively.

On April 12, 2002, the Company acquired Novametrix Medical Systems Inc., which had a federal and state net operating loss for the period
ending April 12, 2002 of approximately $5,800,000. As of June 30, 2003, $1,700,000 remains of this net operating loss, which expires on a
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carry-forward basis in 2022. Additionally, Novametrix had unused research tax credits of approximately $475,000 which expire in varying
amounts through 2013, and alternative minimum tax credits of $237,000 which do not have expiration dates. As a result of the ownership
change, the utilization of the net operating loss and the credit carry-forwards is limited each year by Internal Revenue Code Sections 382 and
383, respectively. The Company expects to fully utilize the net operating loss and credit carry-forwards prior to their expiration.

The change in deferred income tax assets between June 30, 2002 and June 30, 2003 includes $3,706,000 resulting from acquisitions.
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NOTE L � STOCK OPTION AND PURCHASE PLANS

The Company has in place the 1992 Stock Incentive Plan (the �1992 Plan�) and the 2000 Stock Incentive Plan (the �2000 Plan�), which provide
options to eligible employees, and in the case of the 2000 Plan, to eligible consultants and non-employee directors (as described below in the
case of non-employee directors), to purchase common stock for a period up to ten years at option prices not less than fair market value at the
time of the grant. Under the 1992 Plan, options become exercisable no sooner than six months from the date of the grant at rates that vary
depending on the plan and are subject to possible acceleration in certain circumstances. Under the 2000 Plan, options become exercisable at such
times or upon the occurrence of such events as determined by the Committee administering the 2000 Plan. Under the 1992 and 2000 Plans,
options may include cash payment rights, and restricted shares of the Company�s common stock may also be awarded. The 1992 Plan had a total
of 3,000,000 shares approved for issuance, including 1,000,000 shares that were approved by the Company�s shareholders when the 1992 Plan
was adopted and an additional 2,000,000 shares that were approved by the Company�s shareholders in November 1998. The 1992 Plan expired
on September 28, 2002, and no new options will be granted under the 1992 Plan in the future. The 2000 Plan has a total of 1,400,000 shares
approved for issuance.

The Company also has in place the 1991 Non-Employee Directors� Stock Option Plan (the �Directors� Plan�), from which all 300,000 options
approved for issuance were exhausted in 2001. The 2000 Plan replaced the Directors� Plan for current grants. Options previously granted under
the Directors� Plan, and currently granted under the 2000 Plan, are granted to members of the Company�s Board of Directors who are not
employees of the Company. Each non-employee director receives an option to purchase 5,100 shares (increased to 6,500 shares by an
amendment to the 2000 Plan on May 23, 2003) on the third business day following the Company�s annual meeting of shareholders. These grants
will continue until options for all the shares available under the 2000 Plan have been granted. Such options are granted at fair market value on
the date of grant. For options granted to non-employee directors, 25% of the shares are exercisable one year after the date of the grant, 25% are
exercisable two years after the date of grant, and the remaining 50% are exercisable three years after the date of grant. All options granted under
the Directors� Plan and the 2000 Plan expire ten years after the date of grant.

Each of the Company�s equity compensation plans was approved by security holders.

Healthdyne had in place, prior to its merger with the Company, four stock option plans: the 1993 Stock Option Plan; the 1993 Non-Employee
Director Stock Option Plan; the 1995 Stock Option Plan II; and the 1996 Stock Option Plan. At the date of the merger, the outstanding
Healthdyne options were converted into a total of 1,360,061 options to purchase Respironics common stock. Under the terms of the Healthdyne
plans, all such options became immediately exercisable at the date of the merger and the plans terminated as to new grants. All future stock
option grants will be made from Respironics stock option plans.

Novametrix had in place, prior to its merger with the Company, five stock option plans: the 1990 Stock Option Plan; the 1994 Stock Option
Plan; the 1997 Long Term Incentive Plan; the 1999 Incentive Plan; and the 2000 Long Term Incentive Plan. Novametrix also had in place
certain stock option agreements, separately from its plans, with its President and its Chief Operating Officer. At the date of the merger, the
outstanding Novametrix options were converted into a total of 416,125 options to purchase Respironics common stock. Under the terms of the
Novametrix plans and agreements, all such options become immediately exercisable in connection with the merger and the plans terminated as
to new grants. All future stock option grants will be made from Respironics stock option plans.

The following table summarizes stock option activity:

Option Shares

Edgar Filing: NATIONAL HEALTH INVESTORS INC - Form 8-K

Table of Contents 54



Year Ended June 30

2003 2002 2001

Outstanding at beginning of period 2,764,000 2,174,000 2,584,000
Granted 711,000 1,181,000 604,000
Exercised (654,000) (486,000) (834,000)
Canceled (121,000) (105,000) (180,000)

Outstanding at end of period 2,700,000 2,764,000 2,174,000
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Weighted-average exercise price $ 24.02 $ 19.69 $ 13.64

Exercisable at end of period 1,231,000 1,105,000 648,000

Shares available for future grant 830,000 1,649,000 2,309,000

Price range of granted options $ 29.32-$36.26 $ 10.33-$33.75 $ 16.13-$29.93

The range of grant and exercise prices above for the 2002 fiscal year includes the post-conversion option prices for options granted by
Novametrix prior to its merger with the Company.

The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding at June 30, 2003:

Range of Exercise

Prices

Number of Options

Outstanding

Weighted-Average

Remaining Contractual Life

$5 - $10 555,000 6.14 years
$11 - $15 109,000 4.85 years
$16 - $20 462,000 6.57 years
$21 - $25 130,000 4.98 years
$26 - $30 98,000 6.45 years
$31 - $37 1,346,000 8.67 years

The per share weighted-average fair value of stock options granted during 2003, 2002, and 2001, was $14.25, $17.35, and $10.39, respectively,
on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the following assumptions:

2003 2002 2001

Expected volatility 45.2% 53.0% 57.1%
Expected dividend yield none none none
Risk-free interest rate 2.3% 4.1% 5.0%
Expected life of stock options 5 5 5

The Company applies APB Opinion No. 25, as amended, in accounting for its stock option plans and accordingly, no compensation cost has
been recognized for its stock options in the financial statements. Had the Company determined compensation cost based on the fair value at the
grant date for its stock options under Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123, �Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,� the
Company�s net earnings and related per share amounts would have been reduced to the pro forma amounts indicated below:

Year Ended June 30
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2003 2002 2001

Net income, as reported $ 46,581,000 $ 38,417,000 $ 33,571,000
Add: Stock-based employee compensation expense
included in reported net income, net of related tax effects �  �  �  
Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensation
expense determined under fair value based method for all
awards, net of related tax effects (5,301,000) (5,106,000) (3,369,000)
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Pro forma net income $ 41,280,000 $ 33,311,000 $ 30,202,000

Earnings per share:
Basic�as reported $ 1.39 $ 1.24 $ 1.12

Basic�pro forma $ 1.23 $ 1.07 $ 1.01

Diluted�as reported $ 1.36 $ 1.20 $ 1.09

Diluted�pro forma $ 1.21 $ 1.04 $ 0.98

Novametrix also had in place, prior to its merger with the Company, warrants outstanding to purchase shares of its common stock. At the date of
the merger, the outstanding Novametrix warrants were converted into a total of 71,956 warrants to purchase Respironics common stock with
exercise prices ranging from $10.33 per share to $29.52 per share. The warrants expire at various dates through March 2005. As of June 30,
2003, 69,415 warrants remain outstanding, and are all currently exercisable.

In March 1997, the Company adopted the 1997 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the �1997 Plan�) under which employees could purchase common
stock of the Company through payroll deductions during each Plan year beginning in 1997 through 2001. The 1997 Plan terminated as to future
grants after 2001. In August 2001, the Company adopted the 2002 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the �2002 Plan�) under which employees can
purchase common stock of the Company through payroll deductions during each Plan year beginning in 2002 through 2006. The purchase price
under each Plan is the lesser of 85% of the market value of the Company�s common stock on either the first or last day of the Plan year. The
maximum amount employees can purchase currently under the 2002 Plan, and historically could purchase under the 1997 Plan, is equal to 20%
of their annual compensation. There are no charges or credits to income in connection with the Plans. Shares are purchased at the end of each
Plan year with the funds set aside through payroll deductions.

In June 1996, the Company adopted a shareholders� rights plan under which existing and future shareholders received a right for each share
outstanding entitling such shareholders to purchase shares of the Company�s common stock at a specified exercise price. The right to purchase
such shares is not currently exercisable, but would become exercisable in the future if certain events occurred relating to a person or group (the
�acquirer�) acquiring or attempting to acquire 20% or more of the Company�s outstanding shares of common stock. In the event the rights become
exercisable, each right would entitle the holder (other than the acquirer) to purchase shares of the Company�s common stock having a value equal
to two times the specified exercise price.

NOTE M � INDUSTRY SEGMENT, FINANCIAL INFORMATION BY GEOGRAPHIC AREAS AND MAJOR CUSTOMERS

The Company conducts its operations in one reportable industry segment: the design, development, manufacture and sale of medical devices
used primarily for the treatment of patients suffering from respiratory disorders. Sales by product within this segment are as follows:

Year Ended June 30

2003 2002 2001
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NET SALES
Domestic Homecare products $ 388,516,000 $ 339,339,000 $ 292,164,000
Domestic Hospital products 79,427,000 57,468,000 44,176,000
International products 161,874,000 98,112,000 86,098,000

NET SALES $ 629,817,000 $ 494,919,000 $ 422,438,000

The Company is a Delaware corporation, with its corporate offices located in Murrysville, Pennsylvania. Its principal manufacturing operations
are currently located in Pennsylvania, California, Georgia, Connecticut, and China. Other major distribution and sales sites are located
throughout the United States, Germany, France, Hong Kong, and Japan.
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Financial information about the Company by geographic area is presented below.

Year Ended June 30

2003 2002 2001

NET SALES
Domestic $ 467,943,000 $ 396,807,000 $ 336,340,000

International:
Europe, Africa, and Middle East 74,441,000 61,193,000 57,902,000
Latin America 9,272,000 8,005,000 4,681,000
Far East/Asia Pacific 78,161,000 28,914,000 23,515,000

NET SALES $ 629,817,000 $ 494,919,000 $ 422,438,000

June 30

2003 2002

LONG-LIVED ASSETS
United States $ 111,906,000 $ 111,997,000

International:
Europe 710,000 506,000
Far East/Asia Pacific 21,005,000 21,234,000

TOTAL LONG-LIVED ASSETS $ 133,621,000 $ 133,737,000

The Company develops, manufactures and markets medical devices primarily for the treatment of patients suffering from respiratory disorders.
Its products are used primarily in the home and in hospitals, as well as emergency medical settings and alternative care facilities. The Company
sells and rents primarily to providers and distributors in the healthcare industry and closely monitors the extension of credit to both domestic and
foreign customers, including obtaining and analyzing credit applications for all new accounts and maintaining an active program to contact
customers promptly when invoices become past due. The Company generally does not require collateral for the extension of credit. During the
fiscal years ended June 30, 2003 and 2002, one customer accounted for 10% of net sales. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2001, that same
customer accounted for 11% of net sales.

NOTE N � RETIREMENT PLANS

The Company has a Retirement Savings Plan (�the Plan�) that is available to all U.S. employees. Prior to July 1, 2002, employees could contribute
up to 15% (to a defined maximum) of their compensation to the Plan. Effective July 1, 2002, this contribution rate was increased to up to 30%
(to a defined maximum) of their compensation. The Company matches employee contributions (up to 3% of each employee�s compensation) at a
100% rate, and may make discretionary contributions to the Plan. Total Company contributions to the plan were $2,204,000, $1,774,000, and
$1,307,000 for the years ended June 30, 2003, 2002, and 2001, respectively.
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NOTE O � RESTRUCTURING

On October 23, 2002, the Company announced the relocation of several of its smaller product lines and related support functions from the
Company�s Kennesaw, Georgia manufacturing facility to its Murrysville, Pennsylvania location. This relocation enabled the Company to
standardize its manufacturing support, engineering, and marketing functions as well as improve the overall efficiency of its manufacturing
operations in Kennesaw. Approximately 130 employees were involuntarily terminated and 10 relocated as a result of the restructuring actions,
primarily from manufacturing and manufacturing support, engineering, purchasing, and marketing. In conjunction with these actions, the
Company incurred $9,531,000 of restructuring expenses during the year ended June 30, 2003, related primarily to involuntary termination
benefits accruing to employees
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affected by the restructuring plan, employee transition and relocation benefits that became payable during the year, idle facility rent obligations
that became accruable on the date of the Company�s commitment to the restructuring plan, and certain asset write-offs related to products that
were discontinued as a result of the restructuring plan. The product relocation began during the quarter ended December 31, 2002, and
substantially all of the restructuring actions were completed by June 30, 2003. Substantially all of the restructuring obligations will be paid by
September 30, 2003, except for the idle facility costs that will be paid over the remaining term of the lease. Following is a summary of the
restructuring expenses recorded during the year ended June 30, 2003, the payments and asset write-offs made against the accrued amounts, and
the remaining balances as of June 30, 2003:

Accrued

Employee

Costs

Accrued

Facility

Costs

Accrued

Product and

Other Asset Costs

Other Direct

Costs Total

Restructuring expenses $ 4,371,000 $ 2,568,000 $ 1,588,000 $ 1,004,000 $ 9,531,000
Cash payments (1,996,000) (168,000) �  (1,004,000) (3,168,000)
Non-cash asset write-downs �  �  (157,000) �  (157,000)

Balance at June 30, 2003 $ 2,375,000 $ 2,400,000 $ 1,431,000 $ �  $ 6,206,000

Of the restructuring charge, $9,176,000 is included in restructuring and acquisition-related expenses, and $355,000 is included in cost of goods
sold in the Consolidated Statement of Operations for the year ended June 30, 2003.

In July 1999, the Company announced a major restructuring of its U.S. operations that included facility closings and downsizing, a management
realignment, and a workforce reduction associated with those changes. As the restructuring actions were completed during fiscal year 2001, the
Westminster, Colorado facility was sold as planned, and a gain of approximately $2,000,000 was recorded on the sale. Also during fiscal year
2001, final restructuring expenses of $800,000 were incurred, primarily for inventory write-offs of discontinued products.

NOTE P � ACQUISITIONS

Novametrix Medical Systems Inc. - On April 12, 2002, the Company completed its previously announced acquisition of 100% of the
outstanding common stock of Novametrix Medical Systems Inc. (�Novametrix�), a leading cardio-respiratory monitoring company that develops,
manufactures, and markets proprietary state-of-the-art noninvasive monitors, sensors, and disposable accessories. The acquisition of Novametrix
was consummated pursuant to an Agreement and Plan of Merger (�Merger�) dated as of December 17, 2001, pursuant to which Respironics
Holdings, Inc., a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, was merged with and into Novametrix. The Company made this acquisition for
various reasons, including: (a) the Novametrix monitoring products complement the Company�s therapeutic products used in the hospital
environment, (b) the Novametrix developmental care products complement the Company�s infant management products and programs, (c) the
Novametrix cardiac output monitoring technologies have the potential to support the Company�s initiatives in the congestive heart failure area,
and with the acquisition, (d) the Company�s �critical mass� of products, revenues, profits, and assets in these markets increased, and (e) the
Company expects to reduce costs by integrating Novametrix�s business functions and processes. The results of operations of Novametrix are
included in the Company�s Consolidated Statements of Operations beginning on the acquisition date, April 12, 2002.
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Upon consummation of the Merger, 2,400,000 shares of the Company�s common stock were issued to the former stockholders of Novametrix,
reflecting an exchange ratio of .2541 shares of the Company�s common stock for each share of Novametrix common stock. The exchange ratio
was determined based on the weighted-average selling price of $31.48 for the Company�s common stock for the 20-day trading period from
March 11 through April 8, 2002. Novametrix stockholders received the Company�s stock in an amount equal to $8.00 per Novametrix share
based upon the weighted-average selling price. In addition, 509,000 shares of the Company�s common stock were reserved for issuance upon
exercise of options and warrants issued in exchange for Novametrix options and warrants that were not exercised prior to the consummation of
the Merger. As of the close of trading on April 12, 2002, Novametrix common stock ceased to be traded on the Nasdaq National Market.

The total value of the Company�s shares issued and reserved for issuance in the transaction was $80,996,000 based on the average fair market
value of the Company�s common stock during the three-day periods both before and after the first day the number of shares issued became fixed,
plus the fair market value of the Company�s common stock reserved for issuance. In addition, the Company incurred approximately $4,153,000
in transaction costs directly related to the acquisition (consisting primarily of investment banking and other professional fees), bringing the total
acquisition cost to approximately $85,149,000.
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The following table summarizes the fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the date of acquisition. The allocation of the
purchase price is final as of June 30, 2003.

Current assets, primarily consisting of accounts receivable and
inventories $ 24,564,000
Property, plant and equipment 2,571,000
Intangible assets 17,478,000
Other non-current assets 1,355,000
Goodwill 51,680,000

Total assets acquired $ 97,648,000

Current liabilities, primarily consisting of accounts payable, accrued
expenses, and current portion of debt 12,499,000

Net assets acquired $ 85,149,000

The amounts assigned to major classes of intangible assets are shown below:

Product-related intellectual property, primarily patents $ 17,101,000
Employee contracts 377,000

Total intangible assets $ 17,478,000

The weighted-average amortization period is approximately 14 years for the product-related intangible assets, approximately one year for the
employee contracts, and approximately 14 years in total.

Approximately $3,900,000 of goodwill is expected to be deductible for tax purposes.

In fiscal year 2002 after consummating the acquisition, the Company began to integrate Novametrix�s products and programs, employees,
systems, and processes with its own. In connection with these integration actions, the Company incurred severance and related costs of
$1,647,000 for the separation of approximately 50 employees, of which $1,336,000 represented costs of the acquisition and were included in the
purchase price allocation for Novametrix, and $311,000 was recorded as restructuring and acquisition-related expenses during the fourth quarter
of fiscal year 2002. Restructuring and acquisition-related expenses incurred during the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2002 also included
$1,977,000 related to eliminating and centralizing certain corporate services functions, and were primarily comprised of employee transition
payments and consulting fees.

In fiscal year 2003, the Company incurred additional restructuring and acquisition-related expenses of $6,205,000 (excluding the impact of the
facility changes described below), primarily related to the elimination and centralization of certain corporate services functions and certain
compensation related payments associated with the acquisition and related integration activities. These costs are classified in restructuring and
acquisition-related expenses in the Consolidated Statement of Operations for the year ended June 30, 2003.
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On April 11, 2003, the Company announced that it would be consolidating product manufacturing activities and other support functions from the
Company�s Wallingford, Connecticut plant to its Carlsbad, California location. This action represents the final step in the Company�s integration
of Novametrix. The relocation will allow the Company
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to standardize its manufacturing support and engineering functions at the Carlsbad plant, will enable the Wallingford facility to concentrate on
new product research and development, and will improve the overall efficiency of the Company. Approximately 80 employees were
involuntarily terminated as a result of the restructuring actions, primarily from manufacturing and manufacturing support, purchasing, and
certain administrative support functions. The relocation activities are expected to result in total restructuring and acquisition-related expenses of
approximately $9,000,000 on a pre-tax basis to be incurred over the one-year period that the relocation takes place, of which $1,441,000 were
incurred and recorded as restructuring and acquisition-related expenses during the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2003. These costs relate primarily
to employee retention and transition benefits and other costs associated with the relocation and transition process. Additionally, approximately
$1,911,000 of costs associated with employees� involuntary termination and relocation benefits and idle facility rent obligations was accrued as
of April 11, 2003, the date the Company finalized the restructuring plan. These $1,911,000 of costs represent costs of the Novametrix acquisition
and were recorded as additional goodwill in the Consolidated Balance Sheet as of June 30, 2003.

Following is a summary of the restructuring and acquisition-related expenses related to the Novametrix acquisition that were recorded during the
year ended June 30, 2003, the payments made against the obligations, and the remaining obligations as of June 30, 2003:

Accrued

Employee

Costs

Accrued

Facility

Costs

Other Direct

Costs Total

Restructuring and acquisition-related expenses $ 311,000 $ �  $ 1,977,000 $ 2,288,000
Costs of the acquired business 1,336,000 �  �  1,336,000
Cash payments (397,000) �  (1,077,000) (1,474,000)

Balance at June 30, 2002 $ 1,250,000 $ �  $ 900,000 $ 2,150,000

Restructuring and acquisition-related expenses 2,473,000 �  5,173,000 7,646,000
Costs of the acquired business 836,000 1,075,000 �  1,911,000
Cash payments (2,725,000) �  (6,073,000) (8,798,000)

Balance at June 30, 2003 $ 1,834,000 $ 1,075,000 $ �  $ 2,909,000

Substantially all of the restructuring obligations will be paid by September 30, 2004.

In the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2002, the Company ceased work on an oxygen monitoring technology development project based in part on
the results of a review of that technology by engineers from Novametrix that was conducted after the acquisition. This decision resulted in an
impairment charge totaling $2,006,000 in the fourth quarter representing the write-off of intangible assets, inventory and fixed assets related to
the project. This amount is included in restructuring and acquisition-related expenses in the Consolidated Statement of Operations for the year
ended June 30, 2002.

The following unaudited pro forma summary presents the Company�s results of operations as if the acquisition had occurred at the beginning of
the period indicated and does not purport to be indicative of what would have occurred had the acquisition been made as of that date, or of
results that may occur in the future. These pro forma results of operations do not reflect the positive impact of cost reductions and other
synergies that were realized as a result of the merger, nor do they include non-recurring restructuring and acquisition-related expenses incurred
following the merger.
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Year ended June 30

2002 2001

Pro Forma Sales $ 531,606,000 $ 477,120,000
Pro Forma Net Income 37,857,000 33,049,000
Pro Forma Earnings Per Share 1.12 0.99

Novametrix had an April fiscal year-end, which differed from the Company�s June year-end. In order to develop the fiscal year 2002 pro forma
information, the Company�s income statement for the year ended June 30, 2002 (which included Novametrix�s results of operations effective
April 12, 2002) was combined with Novametrix�s unaudited income statement for the period July 1, 2001 through April 12, 2002. In order to
develop the fiscal year 2001 pro forma information, the Company�s income statement for the year ended June 30, 2001 was combined with
Novametrix�s income statement for the year ended April 29, 2001. Earnings per share data are based on the Company�s weighted-average number
of common shares outstanding plus the total number of the Company�s common shares and equivalents delivered to Novametrix stockholders as
part of the acquisition.
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Fuji RC Kabushiki Kaisha - In May 2002, the Company acquired a 60% controlling interest in Fuji RC Kabushiki Kaisha (�Fuji�), a leading
provider of homecare and hospital products and services for respiratory-impaired patients in Japan, and entered into an agreement to purchase all
of the remaining outstanding shares of Fuji in four annual installments of $1,433,000, the last of which is due on December 31, 2006. The net
present value of the Company�s fixed-price forward contract, $5,455,000, is accounted for as a financing of the Company�s purchase of the
minority interest and is classified with other non-current liabilities in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. Including the fixed-price forward
contract and costs directly associated with the acquisition, the base cash purchase price for all of the outstanding shares is approximately
$12,662,000 with provisions for additional payments to one of the shareholders of Fuji to be made based on the operating performance of Fuji
over the next four years, payable on December 31, 2006. These additional payments are being accrued as compensation over the four-year
period as they are earned by the shareholder during his post-acquisition employment period. As of June 30, 2003, $2,036,000 is accrued in the
Consolidated Balance Sheet and classified with other non-current liabilities pertaining to this obligation. No amounts of the purchase price were
assigned to goodwill or other intangible assets since the initial purchase price equaled the fair market value of the net assets acquired.

BiliChek - On March 6, 2003, the Company acquired certain assets related to the BiliChek Non-invasive Bilirubin Analyzer product line from
SpectRx, Inc. for a base purchase price of $4,000,000 and up to $7,250,000 of additional future payments based on the achievement of various
performance milestones following the acquisition. The acquisition expands the Company�s involvement with the acquired product line from U.S.
marketing and sales under a prior exclusive license agreement, to worldwide marketing and sales and also to the future development and
manufacturing of the product. The acquisition did not materially impact the Company�s net sales or net income during the year ended June 30,
2003. In connection with the acquisition, the Company recorded $3,365,000 of intangible assets, representing the fair market value of acquired
product-related intellectual property and employee contracts. The weighted-average amortization period for these intangible assets is
approximately 14 years.

NOTE Q � EARNINGS PER SHARE

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted earnings per share:

Year Ended June 30

2003 2002 2001

Numerator:
Net income $ 46,581,000 $ 38,417,000 $ 33,571,000
Denominator:
Denominator for basic earnings per share - weighted-average shares 33,585,000 31,079,000 29,962,000
Effect of dilutive securities - stock options and warrants 759,000 929,000 924,000

Denominator for diluted earnings per share - adjusted weighted-average
shares and assumed conversions 34,344,000 32,008,000 30,886,000

Basic Earnings Per Share $ 1.39 $ 1.24 $ 1.12

Diluted Earnings Per Share $ 1.36 $ 1.20 $ 1.09
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NOTE R � QUARTERLY RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (UNAUDITED)

Following are the unaudited quarterly results of operations for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2003 and 2002:

2003

Three Months Ended

September 30 December 31 March 31 June 30

Net Sales $ 138,642,000 $ 151,881,000 $ 161,858,000 $ 177,436,000
Gross Profit 68,136,000 76,330,000 82,727,000 92,239,000
Restructuring and Acquisition-Related Expenses 3,165,000 7,043,000 3,182,000 4,398,000
Net Income 8,886,000 9,213,000 13,917,000 14,566,000
Basic Earnings Per Share 0.27 0.28 0.41 0.43
Diluted Earnings Per Share 0.26 0.27 0.41 0.42

2002

Three Months Ended

September 30 December 31 March 31 June 30

Net Sales $ 107,409,000 $ 117,384,000 $ 126,708,000 $ 143,418,000
Gross Profit 50,900,000 54,699,000 59,564,000 68,961,000
Restructuring and Acquisition-Related Expenses and
Impairment Charge �  �  �  4,294,000
Net Income 8,102,000 9,957,000 11,316,000 9,042,000
Basic Earnings Per Share 0.27 0.33 0.37 0.28
Diluted Earnings Per Share 0.26 0.32 0.36 0.27

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure.

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures.

Not applicable
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PART III

Items 10 through 14.

In accordance with the provisions of General Instruction G to Form 10-K, the information required by Item 10 (Directors and Executive Officers
of the Registrant), Item 11 (Executive Compensation), Item 12 (Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management), Item 13
(Certain Relationships and Related Transactions), and Item 14 (Principal Accounting Fees and Services) is not set forth herein because prior to
October 28, 2003 the Company will file with the Commission a definitive Proxy Statement which involves the election of Directors at its Annual
Meeting of Shareholders to be held on November 18, 2003, which Proxy Statement will contain such information. The information required by
Items 10, 11, 12, 13, and 14 is incorporated herein by reference to such Proxy Statement.
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules and Reports on Form 8-K

The financial statements, financial statement schedules and exhibits listed below are filed as part of this Annual Report on Form 

10-K.

(a) (1) Financial Statements:

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company and its subsidiaries, together with the report of Ernst & Young LLP dated July 22, 2003,
filed as part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K are listed in the index to Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8.

(a) (2) Financial Statement Schedule:

FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULE

VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

RESPIRONICS, INC.

DESCRIPTION

ADDITIONS

Balance at

Beginning of

Period

Charged to

Costs and

Expenses

Charged to

Other Accounts

(a)

Deductions

(b)

Balance

at End

of Period

Year ended June 30, 2003:
Deducted from asset accounts:
Allowance for doubtful accounts $ 20,046,000 $ 4,626,000 $ 0 $ 12,504,000 $ 12,168,000

Year ended June 30, 2002:
Deducted from asset accounts:
Allowance for doubtful accounts $ 16,457,000 $ 3,275,000 $ 3,007,000 $ 2,693,000 $ 20,046,000

Year ended June 30, 2001:
Deducted from asset accounts:
Allowance for doubtful accounts $ 17,975,000 $ 2,000,000 $ 0 $ 3,518,000 $ 16,457,000
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(a) � Allowance for doubtful accounts acquired from Novametrix Medical Systems Inc., which reduced the acquired accounts
receivable to fair market value as of April 12, 2002.

(b) - Write-off of uncollectible accounts.

All other Financial Statement Schedules have been omitted because they are not applicable to the Company.

52

Edgar Filing: NATIONAL HEALTH INVESTORS INC - Form 8-K

Table of Contents 72



Table of Contents

(a) (3) Exhibits

Those exhibits listed on the exhibits index beginning on page 55 of this Form 10-K are filed herewith or incorporated by reference.

(b) Reports on Form 8-K:

Current Report on Form 8-K of Respironics, Inc. with a report date of April 15, 2003, announcing the Company�s plans to consolidate product
lines and functions acquired from Novametrix.

Current Report on Form 8-K of Respironics, Inc. with a report date of April 24, 2003, announcing the Company�s financial results for the three
and nine months ended March 31, 2003.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Company has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

RESPIRONICS, INC.

By:    /s/    James W. Liken        

James W. Liken, President and

Chief Executive Officer

Date:    September 29, 2003

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the
Company in the capacities indicated on September 29, 2003:

/s/    JAMES W. LIKEN        /s/    JAMES H. HARDIE        

James W. Liken

(President and

Chief Executive Officer

and Director)

(Principal Executive Officer)

James H. Hardie

(Director)

/s/    DANIEL J. BEVEVINO        /s/    DONALD H. JONES        

Daniel J. Bevevino

(Vice President and Chief Financial

Officer)

(Principal Accounting Officer)

Donald H. Jones

(Director)

/s/    GERALD E. MCGINNIS        /s/    CRAIG B. REYNOLDS        

Gerald E. McGinnis

(Chairman of the

Craig B. Reynolds

(Director)
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Board of Directors)

/s/    JOHN C. MILES II        /s/    JOSEPH C. LAWYER        

John C. Miles II

(Director)

Joseph C. Lawyer

(Director)

/s/    DOUGLAS A. COTTER        /s/    J. TERRY DEWBERRY        

Douglas A. Cotter

(Director)

J. Terry Dewberry

(Director)

/s/    SEAN MCDONALD        /s/    CANDACE L. LITTELL        

Sean McDonald

(Director)

Candace L. Littell

(Director)

/s/    JOHN L. MICLOT        

John L. Miclot

(Director)
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EXHIBITS INDEX

Exhibit No. Description and Method of Filing

3.1 Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Company, filed as Exhibit 3.2 to Amendment No. 1 to Form S-1, Registration
No. 33-20899.

3.2 Amendment to Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Company, filed as Exhibit 3.2 to Form S-1, Registration No.
33-39938.

3.3 Amendment to Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Company, filed as Exhibit 4.2 to Company�s Registration
Statement on Form S-8, Registration No. 33-36459.

3.4 Amendment to Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Company, filed as Exhibit 4.2 to Company�s Registration
Statement on Form S-8, Registration No. 33-89308.

3.5 Amendment to Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Company, filed as Exhibit 3.5 to Form 10-Q for fiscal quarter
ended December 31, 1996.

3.6 Bylaws of the Company, filed as Exhibit 3.4 to Amendment No. 2 to Form S-1, Registration No. 33-20899.

3.7 Amendment to Bylaws of the Company on June 3, 1998, filed as Exhibit 3.7 to Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June
30, 1998.

3.8 Amendment to Bylaws of the Company on November 18, 1998, filed as Exhibit 3.8 to Form 10-Q for fiscal quarter ending
December 31, 1998.

4.1 Loan Agreement dated November 1, 1989 between the Company and the Pennsylvania Economic Development Financing
Authority, filed as Exhibit 4.1 to Annual Report on Form 10-K for Fiscal Year ending June 30, 1990.

4.2 Consent, Subordination, and Assumption Agreement dated April 20, 1990 between the Company and the Greater
Murrysville Industrial Corporation, filed as Exhibit 4.2 to Annual Report on Form 10-K for Fiscal Year ending June 30,
1990.

4.3 Loan Agreement dated June 5, 1990 between the Company and the Redevelopment Authority of the County of
Westmoreland, to be filed with the Commission upon request.

4.4 Consent, Subordination, and Assumption Agreement dated June 21, 1994 between the Company and the Redevelopment
Authority of the County of Westmoreland, filed as Exhibit 4.4 to Annual Report on Form 10-K for Fiscal Year ending
June 30, 1994.

4.5 Consent, Subordination, and Assumption Agreement dated February 22, 1995 between the Company and the Central
Westmoreland Development Corporation, filed as Exhibit 4.5 to Annual Report on Form 10-K for Fiscal Year ending June
30, 1995.

4.6 Form of Rights Agreement between Respironics, Inc. and Chase Mellon Shareholder Services, L.L.C. filed as Exhibit 1 to
Form 8A filed by the Company on June 28, 1996.

10.1 Amended and Restated Incentive Stock Option Plan of Respironics, Inc. and form of Stock Option Agreement used for
Stock Options granted after December 31, 1987, filed as Exhibit 10.2 to Form S-1, Registration No. 33-20899.
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10.2 Amended and Restated Employment Agreement between the Company and Gerald E. McGinnis, filed as Exhibit 10.37 to Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for fiscal quarter ended March 31, 1999.

10.3 Incentive Bonus Plan dated January 26, 1985, filed as Exhibit 10.16 to Form S-1, Registration No. 33-20899.

10.4 Consulting Agreement dated July 1, 1988 between the Company and Dr. Mark Sanders, filed as Exhibit 10.15 to Annual Report on
Form 10-K for Fiscal Year ending June 30, 1989.

10.5 Distribution Agreement dated June 20, 1991 between the Company and Flexco Medical Instruments AG, filed as Exhibit 10.15 to
Annual Report on Form 10-K for Fiscal Year ending June 30, 1991.

10.6 Employment Agreement dated and effective as of April 1, 1995 between the Company and Gerald E. McGinnis, filed as Exhibit
10.19 to Annual Report on Form 10-K for Fiscal Year ending June 30, 1995.

10.9 1991 Non-Employee Directors� Stock Option Plan, filed as Exhibit A to 1991 Proxy Statement incorporated by reference into Annual
Report on Form 10-K for Fiscal Year ending June 30, 1991.

10.10 1992 Stock Incentive Plan, filed as Exhibit A to 1992 Proxy Statement incorporated by reference into Annual Report on Form 10-K
for Fiscal Year ending June 30, 1992.

10.11 Healthdyne Technologies, Inc. 1996 Stock Option Plan, filed as Exhibit 10.13 to Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 1998.

10.12 Healthdyne Technologies, Inc. Stock Option Plan, filed as Exhibit 10.8 to the Healthdyne Technologies, Inc. Registration Statement
on Form S-1, Registration No. 33-60706.

10.13 Healthdyne Technologies, Inc. Non-Employee Director Stock Option Plan, filed as Exhibit 10.9 to the Healthdyne Technologies,
Inc. Registration Statement on Form S-1, Registration No. 33-60706.

10.14 Healthdyne Technologies, Inc. Stock Option Plan II, filed as an Exhibit to the Healthdyne Technologies, Inc. Annual Report on
Form 10-K, for the year ended December 31, 1994.

10.16 Amended and Restated Employment Agreement dated September 1, 2000 between the Company and Steven P. Fulton, filed as
Exhibit 10.16 to Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2001.

10.17 Employment Agreement dated October 21, 1996 between the Company and Geoffrey C. Waters, filed as Exhibit 10.16 to Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1997.
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10.18 Amended and Restated Employment Agreement dated September 1, 2000 between the Company and Daniel J. Bevevino, filed as
Exhibit 10.18 to Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2001.

10.19 Employment Agreement dated November 11, 1997 between the Company and Craig B. Reynolds, filed as Exhibit 10.22 to Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1998.

10.20 Supplemental Employment Agreement dated November 11, 1997 between the Company and Craig B. Reynolds, filed as Exhibit
10.23 to Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1998.

10.21 Amendment No. 1 to the Employment Agreements between the Company and Craig B. Reynolds dated February 11, 1998, filed as
Exhibit 10.23 to Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2000.

10.22 Amendment to the Employment Agreements between the Company and Craig B. Reynolds dated June 29, 2000, filed as Exhibit
10.24 to Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2000.

10.23 Employment Agreement dated November 10, 1997 between the Company and John L. Miclot, filed as Exhibit 10.24 to Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1998.

10.24 Supplemental Employment Agreement dated November 10, 1997 between the Company and John L. Miclot, filed as Exhibit 10.25
to Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1998.

10.25 Tradename License Agreement dated as of April 21, 1995 by and between Healthdyne, Inc., now Matria Healthcare, Inc., and
Healthdyne Technologies, Inc., now Respironics Georgia, Inc., filed as Exhibit 10.23 to the Healthdyne Technologies, Inc. Form 8-K
dated April 20, 1995.

10.26 Form of letter agreement by and among the Company, Healthdyne Technologies, Inc. and Matria Healthcare, Inc. confirming and
amending Corporate Services Agreement and Tradename License Agreement between Healthdyne, Inc., now Matria Healthcare,
Inc., and Healthdyne Technologies, Inc., now Respironics Georgia, Inc., filed as Appendix D to Exhibit 10.17 to Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q (File No. 000-16723) dated November 14, 1997.

10.27 Amendment No. 1 to Healthdyne Technologies, Inc. Stock Option Plan, filed as Exhibit 10.40 to Healthdyne Technologies, Inc.
Form 10-K/A for the year ended December 31, 1996.

10.28 Amendment No. 2 to Healthdyne Technologies, Inc. Stock Option Plan, filed as Exhibit 10.41 to Healthdyne Technologies, Inc.
Form 10-K/A for the year ended December 31, 1996.

10.29 Lease Agreement, dated December 20, 1993, between Max L. Kuniansky, David L. Kuniansky, Amy Kuniansky Clark, Douglas S.
Kuniansky and Healthdyne Technologies, Inc., now Respironics Georgia, Inc., filed as an Exhibit to the Healthdyne Technologies,
Inc. Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1993.

10.30 Employment Agreement dated November 10, 1997 between the Company and Robert Tucker, filed as Exhibit 10.35 to Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1998.

10.31 Supplemental Employment Agreement dated November 10, 1997 between the Company and Robert Tucker, filed as Exhibit 10.36 to
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1998.
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10.32 Respironics, Inc. 1997 Non-Employee Directors� Fee Plan, filed as Exhibit 10.35 to Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 1999.

10.33 Amendment No. 1 to Rights Agreement, dated as of June 28, 1996, filed as Exhibit 10.39 to Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended September 30, 1999.

10.34 Employment Agreement, made as of October 1, 1999, by and between the Company and James W. Liken, filed as Exhibit 10.40 to
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2000.

10.37 Amendment to the Employment Agreements between the Company and Craig B. Reynolds dated August 8, 2000, filed as Exhibit
10.43 to Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2000.

10.38 Amendment to the Employment Agreements between the Company and Craig B. Reynolds dated August 16, 2000, filed as Exhibit
10.44 to Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2000.

10.41 2000 Stock Incentive Plan, filed as Exhibit A to 2000 Proxy Statement incorporated by reference into Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2000.

10.42 Respironics, Inc. Non-Employee Director Deferred Compensation Plan, filed as Exhibit 10.42 to Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2002.

10.43 Credit Agreement by and among Respironics, Inc. as the borrower, THE BANKS PARTY THERETO, as the Lenders thereunder,
and PNC BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION as Agent, PNC CAPITAL MARKETS, INC. as Lead Arranger, and CITIZENS
BANK OF PENNSYLVANIA and FLEET NATIONAL BANK as the Documentation Agents, dated as of August 19, 2002, filed as
Exhibit 10.43 to Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2002.
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10.44 Amendment No. 1 to Employment Agreement between the Company and James W. Liken dated August 26, 2002, filed as Exhibit
10.44 to Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2002.

10.45 Amendment No. 3 to the Employment Agreement between the Company and John L. Miclot dated October 23, 2002, filed as Exhibit
10.45 to Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended December 31, 2002.

10.46 Employment Agreement between the Company and William J. Post dated October 28, 2001 and Amendment No. 1 to the
Employment Agreement between the Company and William J. Post dated October 23, 2002, filed as Exhibit 10.46 to Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended December 31, 2002.

10.47 First Amendment to Credit Agreement by and among Respironics, Inc. as the borrower, THE BANKS PARTY THERETO, as the
Lenders thereunder, and PNC BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION as Agent, PNC CAPITAL MARKETS, INC. as Lead Arranger,
and CITIZENS BANK OF PENNSYLVANIA and FLEET NATIONAL BANK as the Documentation Agents, dated as of June 1,
2003, filed as Exhibit 10.47 to this Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended June 30, 2003.

10.48 Clarification of Benefits Under Agreement Regarding Supplemental Retirement Benefits between the Company and Gerald E.
McGinnis dated May 23, 2003, filed as Exhibit 10.48 to this Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended June 30, 2003.

10.49 Respironics, Inc. Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan dated June 1, 2003, filed as Exhibit 10.49 to this Annual Report on Form
10-K for the year ended June 30, 2003.

10.50 Respironics, Inc. 2000 Stock Incentive Plan as amended on May 23, 2003, filed as Exhibit 10.50 to this Annual Report on Form
10-K for the year ended June 30, 2003.

21.1 List of Subsidiaries filed as Exhibit 21.1 to this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

23.1 Consent of Ernst & Young LLP, filed as Exhibit 23.1 to this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

31.1 Section 302 Certification of James W. Liken, President and Chief Executive Officer.

31.2 Section 302 Certification of Daniel J. Bevevino, Vice President and Chief Financial Officer.

32 Section 906 Certifications of James W. Liken, President and Chief Executive Officer and Daniel J. Bevevino, Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer.
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